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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of China Bank Sceurities Corporation (the Company ) is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, inchuding the schedules attached therein, for the vears eniled
Decamber 31, 2024 and 2023, m accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated
therein, and for such interal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstsement, whether due 1o frasd or error

In preparing the financial statements. management & responsible for assessmg the Company's ability o
continue a5 a gomng concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related w going concemn and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cegse
operations. or has no realistic alternative bul 1o do so

The Board of Directors {BOD) = responsible for overseemg the Company's financial Teparting process

The BOD reviews and approves the financial statements inchiding the schedules atached thersin, and
subimits the same w the stockbolders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo and Co.. the independent audifor appointed by the stockholders, has audited the
tmancial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Avditing, and in i Feport Lo
the BOHD and stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such
il

Ryan M rt'£ L. Tapia

Charrmgn of the Board

President and Chiel Executiwve (fficer

el
.ﬂmm&?ﬁa:;l_su

Treasurer

Signed this 20" dey of March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Sockholders and Board of Directors and Stockhobders
China Bank Securities Corporation

28th Floor, BDO Equitable Tower

HT31 Pageo de Koxas, Brey. Bel-Aur

Makau City

Heport on the Aundit of the Financial Statements

Chpinion

We bave audited the financial statements of China Bank Securities Corporation {the Company), which
comprise the statetments of financial condition a8 a1 December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the staterments of
ingome, datements of comprehensive incoime, stalements of changes in equity and statements of cash

flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material sceounting policy
informario,

In our apimon, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 312024 and 2023, and itz fnancial performance and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in sccordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Fmancizl Statemenis section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Aceountants i the Phalippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements thal are relevant to our auedit of the financial stazements in the Philippimes, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audst evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide &
hasis for our opirnion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governanee for the Financial Statements

Management i3 responsible for the preparation and fair preseniation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such imemal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatemens, whether due to freud or
eITar,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
coniinue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to poing concern and using the
guing concern basis of accounting unless management either Lstends to hiquidate the Company or o cease
erperations, of has no reakistic nltemative but 1o do so

Those charged with governance are responsible for everseang the Company™s financial reporting process.

B remraca: b St By = b | e
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial slarcmenis as a whole are
free from malenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditor's report that
includes our opindon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, buf is not a puarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will abways detect a material misstatement when it exists
Misstatements can anse from frawd or emor and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an awdin in gecordance with PSAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

s ldentify and assess the rnisks of matersal messtatement of the financial staterments, whether due to fraud
or ermor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and oblain audit evidence that
i5 sufficicnt and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a imaterial
misstatemnent resulting from frawd is higher than for one resalting from error, as fraud may invalve
¢ollusion, forgery. intentignal amissions, misrepresentations, of the override of internal control,

& Obiasn an understanding of internal controf relevant 1o the audit in order to design andit procedures
that are appropriate i the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opdnion on the
effectuiveness of the Company's internal control

*  Evaluaic the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

= Conclude on the approprizieness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
bised on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matersal uncertainty exists related 10 events ar
conditions that may cast significant douly on the Company ‘s ability to continpe a5 a going concem.
If we conclude that a material unceriainty exisis. we are required to draw atiention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequae, w0
maodity cur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence ebtained up 1o the date of our
dudror’s report. However, fumire events or conditions may cause the Company to cease o comntiie
E5 A EOMg concem,

=  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
tisclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlymg transactions and events ina
manner thil achieves fair presentation

We commumicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maners, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant sudit findings, inchudmg any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identifv during onr audit.
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Report on the Supplementary Information Reguired Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Crur audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-20104n Note 24 to
Lhe financial statements is presented for purpases of filing with the Bureau of Intemal Revenue and is not
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the
minagement of China Bank Securities Corpotation. The information has been subjecied to the auditing
procedures applied in our audil of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation 1o the basic financial statements taken as a whole,

SYCIF GOERES VELAY O & €0,

Redgienald G, Eadam

Fartner

CPA Certtficate W, 1] E866

Tax ldentification Mo, 2459-010-2 50
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CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION

{A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of China Bank Capital Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31
2024 2023
REVEMNLES
Comamissions (Mode |49 P3LE4R,5T6 F25.5749.265
Research and morketing focs (Mot 200) 17,555 3 18,209,608
Interest ( Modes 6 and 7) TA21.310 2200757
Davidend (Mote 71 05, TH2 9MLT14
Trading pains {ksacs) — net { Noe 7) {5, TR A2 61,588
Miscellanecus (Note 21) 1,946,537 1 438 &R
51 183 474 48,930,630
COST OF SERVICES
Salanes and bepefing 24,708,910 22 TH2 20
Stock exchange dues and focs 1165077 1,914,564
Central depostory fees 20650, 583 LIS, 164
Retirement expense (Mot 16 1,262,443 L3506, TR
Amoctizateon [Mose 123 280, Tl 200k
e 32,371,759 19,709,222
CGROSS PROFIT L0AHA.TIS | okl 1104
OFPERATING EXPENSES
Commanigation aml supplics (Noe 21) 4.5901.540 LTIR I6T
Infarmation technolory (Mote 21) 4305715 4,537.916
Entertzinment, amusement and receeation {MNote 213 2770300 1, M16,337
Transportation and travelling 1649992 1 283,250
Management and oaher professumal faes (Note 215 1,574,814 L399 (K
Drepreciation vspemse (ot 117 1,232,974 |, 236,765
Secunty, messengertal and janitorial 1,135,038 1,017,237
Insurance 051070 476,192
Coondominium dues and foes A15.833 Tk 00
Toxes and liconses 240,178 IRR AT
Provisien for {reversal frem) credit and impairment losses { Nose @) (4.512) 390, 1R
Miscellunesus {Mate 213 3715087 | 383 408
22900644 2T, 333. 377
LSS BEFORE INCOME TAX {2 M52y (38,311 Saa)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Nate 17) 1 185501 £77.521
NET LOSS (P5,080,520) (P3G, 1 a4

Kint wccvipanniag Nater re Elaamclaf Sirdemeore



CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION
(A Whaelly Owned Subsidiary of China Bank Capital Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

24 k]
MET LOSS (5086520 {F39, 1 84 400
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (L{55)
Ftems thar da noy #ecvede fo prafidor Jenw i serhapguead preriods
Remedsurement logs on rebirement Hability {Mote 16) (2,215,643) (509 512y
Py thar Fecpole T profie o foes Jn noboegnent periods
Changes i unrealized gain on financial ssscts 2t foar vahse throagh
other comprehensive incomes
Unreolized gains (lesscs) for the vear (Note T) (300671} S7Q. R T
Realized loss taken wo |'|rr,|I'|1 ar logs (Mote T) 1,177 784 =
| 1,344,529) 4 i, 358
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (PG, 431,049 (FIR. 770 132)
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CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION

{A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of China Bank Capital Corparation)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

K4 2523
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before imeome fax [, ) 929} 1$E 3] ] 56T
At £
Provissce fin {reversal from) credit and impaimment [osses
{ hopes 9 and 139 14,515 InGR0IE]
Irerest meome (Mobes & and T) 17,511,310 {22000 757}
Ehpriecesiaon and amostization {(Meges 1] and 12) 1,819,725 1956457
Ritirement expense (Mote i) 1,262.443 1,356,708
Ubreatized gam om ficaneind assers st Sair vatue theongh paodi or Loss (Modz T) (1648321 (662 R
Unreatized forzign exchaies losaes {pains) (Mote 21) [EEL R IR Y] fil, 1 51
Doperating income (ki) before changes in operating asscts asd Labihties ATLTIY 2,105,010
Changes iy apcoaring &sseis aod lobilies;
[ecrease (ingreass) ny
Finanein] seste @ fam valwe through profit oc lnss (2225 958) | F0L 1005 506
Trade receivahiss (%3 40268105 {21.30] 6224
Prepaveaens and other assens (453.900) (3,735,529
Other receivatles (53269 1 Z8 463
Increaxe {decroase) i
Trade pavahlcs | 24952356 4315200500
Accrued experses ond ather lishibitice li%’i‘ﬂ} (B, 2200
gt vash provaded by fused in) pperaticns Th EHERET ek AR S
Imetess received B ELTE1E 3250 757
T laoves pasd 1 BT5691) L LR LYy
Mot cash provided by (used 16} operabing aclivifies 21,510,850 (405 581,057
CASI FLOWS FROM INYESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquiitions off
Finascial etz at far vadue thooogh other compeeliensive ineome {65,000 1)) {10 79044
Froperty and equipmest (Nee 1) {1014, 1%8) (ERI 154
Procesds frofn sale ¢ matnany of
Financial assers gl faar value throagh other comprelensave incoms 75 0L (M) ¥
Fropery and equipment (Mote 11) I, [k 2540 (HMD
Mt cash prvvided by (used inj Evesting dcivitss i, 3 802 A 20026, 07 (b
LASH FLUWS FRUM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Drepaocin for Polure stock subscription Motz 23} - R
Met cash providad by financing aciovities = 10, CA, R
EFFECT OF FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGES d=40.E1 1 (61513
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SRR AT (33073 2TE)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINMING OF VEAR ea M TR 410 BR324
CAsi .lg"l].ll CASH E”l’l‘r’ﬂ.l_ﬂ‘ﬂ'!'i- AT E.?‘il.l' Ll 'E'ﬂ { P B FHIA.TE8, diH B00 m15 0%

Ser accompanying Nates fa Financie! Staicmends,
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CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of China Bank Capital Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

China Bank Securities Corporation {the Company). formerly known as ATC Securitics, Inc, was
imcorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
with SEC Rep. No. 83424 on December 31, 1978 1o primarnly engapge in and carry on the business of
dealing, purchasing or otherwise acquiring, swning, holding, managing. using or ebtaining an
nierest, akone or in conjunction with any person natural or juridical, domestic or foreign, in all kinds
of secunties, mcludng but not limited to, shares of stock, bonds, debentures, warrants, notes and
otbver debis securities,

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Bank Capital Corporation {the Parent
Company ). The ultrmate parent company is China Banking Corporation (CBC).

The Campany's registered office, which is also its prneipal place of business, is located at 28th Floor,
BDO Equitable Tower, 8751 Paseo de Roxas, Brgy. Bal-Air, Makati City,

It

Summary of Material Amunﬂﬁé Policy Information

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on o historical cost basis except for
financial asseis that are measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) and ar Fair Yalue
throaigh Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCT), The financial statements are presented in Philippine
pes0 (), which is also the Company's functional and presentation currency. All amounts are
rounded to e nearest pesa, except when otherwise indicated,

The financual statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRSs) as issued by the Financial and Sustainahilitv Reporting Standards
Councl {FERSC),

Changes in_Accounting Policies and Disclosuges
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the

firllowing amendments i PFRS which became effective as of January 1, 2024, The Company has not
carly adopied any standard, imlerpretation or amendment that has been issued but s not vet effective,
Unless stherwise indicated, adoption of these new accounting standards did not have amy sipmificant
impact on the financial statements of the Company:

*  Amendments to PAS 1, Classificaiion of Liokilities a5 Current or Nom-curret

* Amendments 1o PFRS 16, Lease Liatiliny in o Sale and feasebock
* Amendments o PAS T and PFRS 7. Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements
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Fimandcial asscts and financial Labilities are oifsel, and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial condition only when there is a legally enforceable right to ofTset the recognized amounts and
thete is an intention to settle on a net basis. or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultancously,

The Company assesses that it has currently enforceable right of offset if the right 12 nol contingent on
a future event, and is legnlly enforceable in the normal course of the business, event of default and
event of insolvency or bankrupicy of the Company and all of the counterpartics.

[ncoame and expenses arc pof offset in the statement of income unless required or permttiad by any
accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policics of the
Company

Forcign Currency Translations - Transactions and Bulances

Transactions m foreign currencies are translated 1o Philippine peso at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and lisbilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting dute are
translated to the Phalippine peso at the exchange mte at that date.

Foreign exchange differentials arising from foreign cumrency transacticns and translations of foreien
currency-denominated assets and labalities are récognized in the statement of income in the YEAT 1T
which the rates change

Fair ¥alue Measurement

For measurement and disclosure purposes, the Campany determines the fair value of an asset or
lszbality at instial measurement date or ab each statement of financial condition date, Fair value is the
price that would be received 1o 2ell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction
between market parucipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement s based on the
presumption that the transaction 1o scll the asset or transfer the hability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or lability, or
* [Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Kability,

The prancipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible w by the Company.

The farr value of an asset or a liability 1s messured using the assumptions that market partictpants
would use when pricing the assel or liability, assuming that market patticipants act in their economic
best mmteresl.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s abality 1o
generate coonomic benefits by using the asset in 118 highest and best use or by sellmg it to another
market panicipant that would use the asset in i3 highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate i the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are availzhle to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant ohservable Inputs
and mininuzing the use of unobservable inputs,

Cash and Cagh Equivalents
Far purpases of reporting cash flows, cash includes cash in bank and perty cash funds. Cash
squivalents are convertible to known amounts of cash which have original maturities of three months

of less from the dare of placement and thar are subject 1 an insignificant risk of changes i value,
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Financial Instnunents
Date aof vecognition

Financigl insttuments within the scope of PFRES 9 are recognized in the statement of Gnancial
catidition when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the inatrument,
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the lime frama establizhed
by regulation or convention {n the marketplace are recognized on trade date. Securities transactions
and refated commission income and expenses are also recorded on trade date.

Initial recognition of faanclal instrmments
All financial instruments are mitially recogmzed an fair value. Except for financial instruments at
FVTPL, initial measurernent of financial instraments mehades mansaction costs.

Classificarion and initial recognition of financial instrumenis

The classification of financial assels at inital recognition depends on the contractusl terms of the
instruments and the business model for managing the instruments. Financial liabilities are clagsifjed
as either at FYTPL or at amortized cost

Cenrtracniial cosh oy test

In order for a financeal asset (o be classified and measured at amortized cost or at FYOUL, it peeds to
give rise to cash flows ikt are “solely payments of principal and interest (SPPL’ on the principal
amount outstanding, This assessment is referred 1o as the SPP1 test and is performed at an instrument
level,

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fir value of the financial asset at initial
recoghition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments
af principal or amortization of the premium/dizcount),

The most significant elements of intersst within a lending arrange are typically the consideration for
the time value of money and credit risk, To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies
Judgment and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial assets is
denomimated, and the period for which the interest rme is set.

Buciness model astessmen)

The Company’s business model for managing fmancial assets refers 1o how it manages its (inancial
assets in order 1o penerate cash flows. The basiness model detennines whether cash flows will result
from cellecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both,

The Company”s business model is not assessed on #n instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher

level of aggregated portfolios and 15 based on observable factors such as:

= how the performance of the business maodel and the financial assets held within that business
mode] are cvaluated and reported 1o the entinys key mARAZ e Nt personnel

+  the risks that affect the performance of (he business model (and the financial asseis held within
that business model) and, in particular, the wiry those risks are managed

*  how managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based
on the fair value of 1he assets managed or on the contractusl cash flows collected)

= the expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company's
HEET BT T
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The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarbos without taking ‘worst case’
Or 'stress case” scendarios into account. 1T cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that
15 different from the Company's original expectations, the Company does not change the
classification of the remaming financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly enginated or newly purchased financial assers pomg forward,

Suliveguent measurenent
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are ¢lassified into four Cilegories:

Financeal assets st amortized cost {debt instrurments)
Financial assets at FVOUCT with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt mstrumenis)
Financial assets designated at FVOCT with no recycling of cumulative gains and losges upon
derecognition {eguily Insinuments}

e Financial agsets at FVTPL

Finarciel azsels of amortized cost (debr insirimenis)
Debt financial asscts are measured at amortized cost if bath of the following conditions sre met-

¢ The financial asset is held within the Company's busmess model whose objective to hold assets
in order to collect condractual cash flows: and

*  The contracual terms of the instrument give nse on specified dates 1o cash flows that are SPPT on
the principal mmount oustamnding,

Diebi financial assets meeting these criteria are measured mitially af fair value plus transaction costs.
They are subsequenily measured at amaortized cost using the effective interest method less allowance
for expecied credit losses, Amortired cost is calcubaied by taking into account anv discount or
premium on acquesition and fees and costs that are an integral pant of the effective interest rate (EIR ).
Any amortization 18 included m *mierest income” in the statement of comprehensive income. Gains
aml Josses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized,
toddified or impaired, as well as through 1he amoniization process,

The Company s financial assets al amortized cost inchodes 'cash’, “receivables from CUSImETs”,
‘receivables from clearing house”, ‘other receivables’, and financial assets under ' Other assets”.

Financial assers at FYOCE (debt (nsirments)

After initial measurement, investment securities at FVOCT are subscguently sneasured at Fair value,
The unrealized gains and losses arising from the forr valuation of investment securities at FVOCT are
excluded, net of tax as applicable, from the reported camings and are included in the statement of
comprehicnisive mcome as ‘change in nel unrealized gain (1oss) an investment secunities at EVOCT

Dbt secunties at FYOCT are those that meet both of the following conditions: (i) the asset is held
within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets in order 1o both collect
contractual cash News and sell financial assets; and (i} the comractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates fo cash flows that are SPPI on the owtstanding principal amounl.

The effective yvield component of debt securities at FVOCT, as well as the impact of restalement on
foreign currency-denominated debt secunitics at FVOCL, is reported in the statement of
comprehensive income, Interest camed on holding debt securities at debt securities a1 FVOCT are
reported as 'intetest mncome’ using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 'When the debt securitics
at FVOCT are disposed of, the cumnulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCT are reclassifiad
a5 "trading and secunities gain (loss] - net” in the statement of income, The ECL arising from
itnpairment of such investments are recognized in OC] with a corresponding charge o
“Miscellaneous” in the statement of income.
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As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s financial assets at FVOC] include investments in
government dely securitiss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Debt financial assets that do nol meet the amortized cost critenia, or that mest the criteria, bug the
Company his chosen to designate as at FVTPL at initial recoenition, are measured at FY TPL,
FVTPL also includes investments m equity shares that are held for trading.

Financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in the siatement of financial condition al fair value., Changes
m fair value are recorded in ‘rading gains (losses) - net” in the statement of income,  Dividends
earnied are recogmized in the statement of income as dividend according 1o the terms of Lhe contract,
or when the nght of the peyment has been established,

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s financial assets at FVTPL include investments in
hsted equity shares and unit investment trust funds {UTTFs),

Finapcial labifines at awarsized cosy

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVTPL, are classified
as Labilities under ‘payable to clearing house', *payable to customers’, and “scomued expenses and
other liabililies". where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company having
an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or 1o satisfy the obligation
uther than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cazh or another financial asset for o fixed number of
oW gty shiares.

The componenis of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity compenent being assigned the residueal amount after
deductmg from the instrument as a whole the amount separately detenmined ax the fair value of the
hability component on the date of issue

Financial liailines at amomized cost are initially recognized af the fair value of the consideration
received less directly attributable transaction costs.

I irment cial sscets

The Company recognizes an allowance tor expected credit losses (ECL) for all debt financial asset
excepl those classified a8 s FVTPL. The ECL i5 based on the difference between e contractual cash
tlows due m accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the onginal cffective interest rate which is determined by
evaluating a ratige of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable amd supportable
information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, The
expected cash fows will include cash Nows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the conteactual terms.

ECLs are recognized in lwo stages. For credit exposures for which there has not heen sepnificant
mcrease in ¢credit risk since initial recognition. ECLs are provided for eradit 1osses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 momths (2 12-month ECL}). For those credit
expuosures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initisl recornilion, a loss
allowance 15 required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, UFespective
ol the timing of the default (2 lifetime ECL |
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Assessmenrt af Significant fncrease i Credit Risk/Staging Assessmend
For non-credt-impaired financial instruments:

¢ Stage | is compnised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have not experienced a
SICR since inital recognition. The Company recosmizes a | 2-month ECL for Stage | financial
inatruments

*  Stage 2 1s compriscd of all non-impaired financial instraments which have experienced & SICR
since initial recognition. The Company recognizes a lifetime ECL for Stage 2 financial
Instrumen iy,

For credit-impatred Gnancial insfruments:

= Financial mstruments are classified as Siage 3 when there is objective evidence of Impirmnent as
a result of one or more 1058 events that have occurred after itial recognition with a negalve
impact on the estimated future cash flows from the financial instnaments. The ECL model
requites that hifetime ECL be recognized for these impaired financial instruments, The ECL
model requires that lifetune ECL be recognized for these impaired fimancial assets,

For recervables from cusiomers, the Company applies the simplified approach in calculating FCL
singe These receivables anse from transactions within the scope of PFRS 15 and do not contain
significant linancing component. Under the smoplified approach, the Company does not track
changes in credit risk, bul instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime FCLs at each
reporting date.

Drefinieon of defaudt

Generally, the Cothpany considers a financial asset i default when contractual payments are 0 days
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset 1o be in defaul
when intemal or extemal information indicates that the Company is unlikely 1o receive the
caststandmg contractual amounts in full before taking mio aceount any credit enhancements held by
the Company. Treasury exposures are considered in default upon occurrence of a credit event such as
but not limited to bankrupicy of coumerpany, restructuring. fatlure to pay om an apreed settlement
date, or request for moratorium. For receivables from customers. the Commpany consider it in default
when already mare than 30 days pasi due

Refer to Note 3 for the Company 's ECL methodaology,

Defecognition of Financial Instraments

Fimancial assers
A financial assel {er. where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
linancial assets) is derccognized when:

& ihe rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

*  the Company retams the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an chlization
tr pay them in full withou! material delay to a third party under a pass-through arrangement; or

= the Company has iransferred its nights to receive cash flows from the asset and sither {a) has
transfecred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, of (b} has netther transferred nor
retained the risks and rewards of the asset but hos tansferred control over the assel.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset of has entersd into a
pass-theough armngement, and has neither transfemed nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transfemred control over the asset, the asset is tecogmzed to the exteni of the
Company s confinuing involvement m the agset,
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Continung mvolvement that lakes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset 15 measured at
the lower of origingl carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Financial flabilivy

A financial Lability 15 derecognized when the obligation under thie Hability is discharped. cancelied or
has expired. Where an existing financial lability is replaced by anather from the same lender on
substantially different lerms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecogrition of the original liability and the recognition of o
new liability. The difference in the respeotive carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
comprebensive inceme.

Prc and Equi |
Property and equipment 1s caried af cost less accumulated depreciation and smortization, and any
impairment in value.

The mitial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price. including taxes and any
directly aitributable cost of bringing the asset 1o its working condition and location for its intended
wse. Expenditures incurred after the items of property and equipment have been put into operalion,
such as repairs and mamtenance, are normally charzed against operations in the year the costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonsirated that the expendinmes lave resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected o be obtained from the use of an item of properiy
and cquipment beyond its onginally assessed standard of performance, the expendineres are
capitalized s an additional cost of the assel. When property and equipment is retired or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and the related sccumulated depreciation and amontization, and any impairment
m value 5 removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is charged against or credited o
currenl Operations.

Depreciation and amortization are compuied using the straight-line method over the estimated usefil
life (EUL} of the respective assets, The EUL of property and equepment (ol lows:

Condominium S0 years
Transporniation eguipment 5 yoars

Qffice fumiture and equiptment 3-5 vears

Computer equipment 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 3 years or the remaining lease term

{whichever is shorter)

The useful life and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and
the methed of depreciation are consistent with the expecied pattern of economic benefits from items
of propenty and equipment

The carrymg values of property and equipment are reviewed for unpairment when events or changes
m circumstances indicate that the carying values may not be recoverahle, If any such indication
exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment Loss (s
recopnized in the statement of comprehensive income.

When the assets ure retired or otherwise dispesed of, the cost and the related accumnulated

depreciation and amy accumulated impairment are removed from the pecounts and the resulting gain
or loss 15 credited or charged against the current operations,



oY

Intangible Azsels

Exchange Trading Right

Exchange trading right is a result of the Philippine Stock Exchange {PSE) conversion plan, as
discussed in Nofe 12, to preserve access of the Company to the trading facilities and continue
transacting business in the PSE. Exchange frading right 15 carried at the amount allocated from the
original cusi of the exchange membership seat (afler a corresponding allocation was made to the
value of the PSE shares) less any allowance for impaiment loss. The Company does not iniend w
sell the exchange trading rmight in the mear funsre,

The exchange wrading nght is an intangible asset that is regarded as having an indefinite usefil life as
there 15 o forcsecable limil to the period over which this asset is expected i generate het cash
inflows for the Company but is tested annually for any impairment in realizable value,

Comprirer Soffware
Costs related to software purchased by the Company for use in operations are amortized on a straight-
Ime basis over the estmated life of three (3) to five (3) years,

Impairment of Nonfinancial Asgels

This accounting policy applies to Company’s propenty and equipment and intangible assets. At each
staternent of financial condition date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that its
property and equipment and computer software may be impaired. Exchange trading right is tesied for
impairment annually, irtespective of whether there is any indication of impaimment.

When & indwater of imparment exists or when an annual unpairment testing for an asser is requined,
the Company makes a fiwmal estimate of recoverable amounl. Recoverable amount is the higher of
an as=el’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in wse and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asser does not genstale cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recovernsble amount is assessed as part of the cash generating
unit to which it belongs. Where the camving amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount, the
assel 15 considered impeired and is written down to 163 recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated furure cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflecis current market assessments of the tme value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset. An
impairment lass 15 charged against operations in the period in which it anses,

Impairment assessment 1< made at each reporting date 1o determine as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impainment losses may no longer exist or may have decrensed.
If such indication exists, the recoverable mmount 15 estimated, A previcusly recognized impairment
loss is reversed only il there has been a change in the cstimates used 1o determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impaimment loss was recognized. 1f that is the case, the camying
amuount of the asset 15 increased to its recoverable amount.  That increased amount cannot excead the
carrving amound that would have been determened, net of depreciation and amortzzation as applicable,
hizd ne imparment loss been recognized fon the asset in prior vears. Such reversal is recopnized in
the statement of comprehensive income, For propenty and equipment after such reversal, the
depreciation expense is adjusted in future years 1o allocate the assel's revised carrying armount, less
any residudl value, on a systematic basis over its remaining life.

Eguiy
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred direcily and
altributable to the issuance of new common stocks are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,

from proceeds. All other equity issuance costs are recognized s expense as mourmed,

NIRRT A
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Retamed camings {deficit) represent accumulated camings (losses) of the Company less dividends
declared.

Depogits for Future Stock Subscnptions

Deposits for future stock subscriptions (DEFSS) represent funds received by the Company with a
view (0 applying the same as payment for 2 future additional issuance of shares either fram its
authorized but unissued shares, from a proposed increase in authorized share capital, or as share
premaum. Upon application with the SEC, the amourd will be credited to Share capital for the par
value of the shares and Share premiurm for the amount in excess of the par value

Bazed on SEC Bulletin No. 6, the Company shall classify deposit for future share subscription as
equity ifand ondy if, all of the following are present at the end of the reporting period:

fah The unissued authorized share capial 15 inseffcient to cover the amount of shares mdicated m (he
contract,

(b} There 1s BOD's approval on the proposed increase m aethorized share capital (for which a
deposit was Tecerved);

(el There is siockholders” approval of said proposed increase: and

(d) The applicution for the approval of the proposesd increase has been presented for filing or has
been filed with the SEC,

If the critesia above are not met, the deposits for future subscriptions will be presented as liabilities in
the statement of financial position

Revenue Recomition
Revenue 15 recognizid when contrel of goods or services 15 transferred to the customers at an amount

that reflects the consideration 1o which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, The Company assesses its revenuc amangements against specific criteria in order
to determine af it is acting as prmeipal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a
principal an all of 1ts revenue artangements,

For revenue stream covered by PFRS 13, the Company exercise judgment, taking ino consideration
all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applymg cach step of the five-step model 10 contracts
with customers.

The following specific criteria must be met before revenue 8 recognized:

Coniminsian

Commigsions are recognized &s income upon confirmation of trade deals. These are computed for
every trade transaction based on a flat rate or a peroentage of the amount of trading transaction,
whichever s higher.

Research and marketing feds
Research and marketing faes are recognized upon completion of the services renderad

Revenise optside of scope of PFRS 13

futewecd

Interest income on cash in bank and interesi-bearing placementz/imvestments is recorded of 8 fime
proportien basis laking inlo accoun the effective. vield of the asset.

AET AT ArArAT
[
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Trading gains (Tosses) - net

Trading pains {losses) - net represent resulis arising from trading activities tincluding gains and losses
from disposal of debt financial assets at FVOC!) and all gains and losses from changes in fur value of
finzncial assets at EVTPL

Dividend
Divadend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive payment is established,

Expenge récognition

Expenses encompass losses as well as these expenses that arise in the course of the ordinary activities
of the Company. Expenses are recognized when incurred. Revenue and expenses that refate o the
same transactions or other event are recognized simultancously. The majority of the EXPICISCS
incurred by the Company such as stock exchange fees and ceniral depository dues and fees, salaries
and bencfits and administrative éxpenses are recognized with regulanty as the Company continues its
OPHETALIS,

Retirement Bemefis
The Compsny is covered by a non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan. The Company

determines retirement cost under the projected unit credit method.  Under this method, the current
service cost is the present value of retirement benefits pavable in the faure with respect b services
rendered in the curmrent period.

The net defined benefil liability or asset is the ageregate of the present valoe of the defined benefit
oblization at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets and adjusied for
any ¢ffect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the assel cellmg, i any. The delined beneflt
ohligation is calculsted annually by an independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefit
cbligation is determined by discounting the estimated cash outflows wsing inferest rates on
govemnmeznt bonds that have terms (0 mulurily approximeting the terms of the related liability, The
asget cenling is the present value of any economic benefits available i the form of refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions 1o the plan.

Drefined benelit costs comprise the Tollowing:

*  Service cosis,
o MNet interest on the net defined benefit liability or asses; and
*  Remessurements of net defined benefit liability o asset,

Service costs which iclude current service costs, past service costs and gainz or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized a8 expense in profit o7 Toss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendimen! or curfailment occurs. These amouni= are calculated periodically by
independent qualified achiaties.

Net mterest on the nel defined benefil liability or asset is the chaage during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the: discount rate based on the Philippine government bonds to the net defined benefit liability ar
assel. Net interest on ihe net defined benefit hability or asset is recognized as expense or income in
prefit oy loss

Remeasurements comprising sctuanal gains and Josses, remurn on plan asséts and any change in the
eflect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
mmediately in OCLin the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified 1o profit
or loss m subsequent peniods.

AR A
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The Company”s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expendsture required 10 settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as & separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is
virtually certam,

Share-based Payments {Stock Grants)

Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share<based payments {stock Urants],
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity mstroments (eoquity-senled
transactions) of the Parent Company.

Income taxes

Income tax on profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred 1axes. Tncome 1ax is
determined in accordance with the Philippine Tax Law. Provision for incoine tax is recognized in the
staterment of comprehensive income

Current ey

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior vears are measured a2 the amount expectad
o b recovered from or paid to the taxation authoritiss, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred fves
Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and lisbilities and the camyving amounts for financial

reporing purposes,

Deferred tax habilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, with centain exceptions,
Deferred tax ascets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused
tax credits from the excess of manimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporats
income tax (RCLT). and unused net operating loss carrvover (NOLCO), w0 the extenr that i1 15
probable that sufficient taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary
differsnces, and the carry forward of unused tax credits from MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized,

Deferred tax, however, is no recopnizad when it arises from the initial recopnition of an asset or
liabality in o transaction that is not a business cominaton and, at the time of the rransacton. affects
neither the acecunting income nor taxable income or loss.

The carrying amount of defermed tax ass21s is reviewed at cach statement of financial condition date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable incoms will be availoble
o allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilieed. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed a1 cach statement of financial condition date and are recognized 1o the extent that it ias
become probable that futire taxable mcome will allow the deferrad tax azset o be recoverad,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured ai the tax rases that are applicable to the perod when
the asset is realized or the liability is senled, based on tax rmtes (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at reporting date, Movements in deferred tax agsets and linbilitics arising
from changes in tax rate are charged or credited to income for the vear.

Current tax and deferred tax relating o tems recognized directly in (01 are also recognized in the
OC ] amid not in profic or loss.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Labalities are ofTset if 4 lepally enforceable right exists to setof

Cumrent lax assets apninst current tax liabilities and deferved taxes refaied o the same txshle ety
and the same taxation authorty,



Consideration of uhcertain oy position

IFRIC 23, Uncerrainty over Income Tax Treaments requires the Company Lo consider whether it 18
probeble that a taxation suthority will scoept an uncertain lax treatment. If the Company cancludes
that the income fax position is not probable of being accepted, the effect of the uncertainty is reflected
in the Company 's accountmg for income taxes,

Evenig pfigr the Reporting Period

Past year-end events that provide additional information about the Company's position at the
staternent of financial condition date (adjusting events) are reflected in the Company's financial
staterments. Posl year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial
staterments when matcrial,

Standards Issned but Not Yet Effective

There are new PFR 55, amendments, interpretation and annoal improvements, 1o existing standards
which are effective for annual periods subsequent 1w 2024, Management will adopt the following
relevant pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions; and, unless otherwise
stated, none of these are expected to have significant impact on the Compary's financial statements:

Effeciive beginiiing or or afler Jamuary |, 2025
& PFRS 17, fasurance Condracts
*  Amendments to PAS 21, Lack of exchangeabiling

Delerved Eflecrivin
¢ Amendments to PERS W -Comsolldared Fimancial Statements, ard PAS 28, Sale or Confribusions
il Assets between an [nvestor and s Associate or Joint Venture

Significant Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Company to make
Judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and CAPENSCS,
and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at reporting date, Future evenis may
et which will cause the assumptions used i ariving at the estimates to change, The effects of
any change in estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably
determinable,

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and oiher
factors, including expecianons of future evenis that are believed to be reazonable under the
ClIrCUmsances.

Judgment

Cfsetting of financial assets amd lahifities

The Company considers its compliance with the offsetiing criteria as a significant judgment in
presenting financial assets and labilitics, particularly the receivables from and pavable to customers
and clearmg house. in its statement of financial condition. In making such assessmeat, the Company
determines at each financial asset and lisbility the existence of an enforceable legal right to offset and
if there is an intention 10 settle om a net hasiz and o realize the assets and sedtle the liabilities
srnultaneously,
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Estimates and Assumpiions

id,

Tmpatirniet of exchange trading vight

The Company conducis an annual review for any impairment in value of exchange trading rght
The factors that the Company considers important which could inigger an impairment review on
its exchange trading nght include the following:

*  Significant underperfonmance relative to expected historical or projected furure eperating
results;

*  Significant changes in the manner of use of the scquired assets or the strategy for overall
business, and

= Significant negative indusiry or economic rends.

Exchange trading right 15 written down for imparment where the carrying amount of the
exchange trading right exceeds its recoverable value. The recoverable amount s based on its fair
value less cosis of disposal.

T 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized ml impainnent on the ¢xchange trading right. Refer
1oy Mot 12 for the camrying valoe of exchange frading nght.

dcerteed retirement obligarion and refivement expense

The Company's acerued retirement obligation and annual retirement expense are determined
using the actuanal valuation. The actuanal valuation is dependent on certain assumptions, which
chude, among vthers, discount rate, wmever rate, furure salary increase rate and menality rles.
Due 1o the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, the
Company’s retirement obligation and related costs are highly sensitive w changes in these
assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The discount rate is determined using the market viclds on Philippine government honds with
terma conaistent with the expected employee benefit payows as of the reporting date,
Tumover rate pertains to the percentage of the Company's employees who leave over thie total
number of employees. Future salary incteases are based on expected future inflation rates,
semiarity, promotion and other market factors. Mortality rate is based on publicly available
maortality tables for the Phalippines and is modified accordingly with estimates of mortality
Improvements.,

The camyvirg amount of the refirement lability and the details of the actuarial agswmplions are
dizclosed 11 Note 146,

Recognition of deferved lax assets

Dreferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probabie that taxable profit will be available against which the Iosses can be utilized. Significant
manggement judement 15 required o determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of funre mxable profits weether with furure
tax planning strategies,

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company assessed that it iz not probable thas the
Company can utilize in full the tax benefits m the forcseeable future. Accordingly, the Company
recopnized deferred tax assets to the extent of the delerred tax liabilities and did at reCognize
deferred tax assets on certain deductible lemporary differences.

The Company’s recognized and unrecognized deferred tax assets are disclosed in Mote 17,
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4.

Fair YValue Measarement

As of December 31, 2029 and 2022, the carrying values of the Company's financial assets and liabilities
as reflected in the statements of financial condition and related notes approsimate their respective fair
values.

The methods ind assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair value of its financial
mstruments are as follows:

Cach and cash equivalents, Trade receivables and Other receivables - The COITYIngE amounts
approximate their fair values due 1o the relanvely short-term nature of these assets.

Fmancial assets at FVTPL - Fair values of listed equity shares are determined based on quoted prices in
the PSE. Fair values of ULTFs are determuned based on net asset vabue per unit (NAVPu) as of
valuation date

Financial assets at FVOC! - Fair valves are detesmined based on qeoted market prices, Le. PH BVAL
reference rates published by the Philippine Dealing and Exchange Corporation ( PDEx).

Fayable to customers and clearing house and acerued expenses and amer labilities - The carmving
amounts approximate their fair values due w either their demiand nature or the relatvely shom-termn
maturties of these labilities.

Fair Yalue Hierarchy :

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is messured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categonized within the fair value hicrarchy. described as follows, based on the lowest level inpur thas
18 significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilites

o Level I Valustion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is dmectly or indirectly observable

= Level 3: Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measirement 13 observable

For assets and labilities thal are recognized m the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have ocowred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categonzation {based on the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the fair value measurement 45 &
whaolel al the end of each reporting penod.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company bas determined classes of assets and Habilites
on the basis of nature, characteristics and fair value hierarchy.
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The following tables summarize the currving amounts and fair values of the Company's fimancaal
instruments carried at fair value, analyzed based on the hierarchy for detenmining and disclosing the fair
value of finanial instruments by vahuation techaigue.

s Inzs
Carrying Tatsl
Wb Leve] | Level 2 Larvild § Fuir Yahe
Asutts mrarered of finie Taime —— =0
Fimancial asscts
Finsncinl arsois 4 FYFL
Chitel wiquily seaumtes #47,21 7,490 AT, 1T 4 [ - Fd 7,207,400
Lindl invesiewml trust fmidks BT AN A1 4 - ST400 414 - STAM 414
Firamejal agness at VW 5 IR MR &I S = = BRI E
FI&% 509 B0 T P12 S dRR 5T 405 414 - P14, S Sl
202 _
LCaryving Taeal
. walue Level | Lewel 7 Lewel 3 Fait Valoe
Astedr Mvwewrra i far valee
Fimaneial et
Fmmcaal gz W FYPL
Chunied SUinY H=unijes 41,273,738 PATITI %8 P P P47 ZTI TG
Unix igvesimes gur fupds J3 438671 31435 ET] AL ET)
Financial assets af 5T PERCL T3.946 482 - - LA 487
FI:‘I_'.'-!HJ-.H';' P13 2M21E FE1 AT8 HT B P74 TR RS

There were no ransfers berwieen the three levels in the far value hierarchy in 2024 and 2023,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company is ¢xposed to a vanety of linancial risks which result from both jts operating and
imvesting activities. The Compary's risk management is coordinaied with its management, in close
coordination with the BOD, and focuses on actively secuning the Company's shor-to-medium term
cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets,

The Company's risk management policies are established o identify and analyze the nsks fced by
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and conrols. and to monitos risks and adherence to limits.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company's business activities, The Company, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligotions.

The Company dozs not actively engage in the wrading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor
does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed 1o are
described below,

The Company has exposure o the following risks from its financial instruments:
Cred risk

*  Luguidety risk

= Market nisk
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Lredit Risk

Credit risk is the non-recovery of credit exposures (on-and-=ofF balance sheet exposures), Managing
credit risk also involves momitoring of migration nisk, concentration risk, country risk and setilement
rigk. Credit risk to a broker dealer normally arises from unsettled customer and principal trades, loans
and other dues, frec delivenies, securities lending and bormowing. margin lending and underwriting
il.l'l.'-ﬂl'lj;::l.'l.'l:l“.":..

Maximem expoyare fo credit risk befare coliareral held or credit enhancemenis

The Company trades only with recognized and credioworthy thind parties. 1t is the Company's policy
that all customers are subjected to oredit verification procedures. In accordance with Risk Based
Captal Adequacy { RBCA ) requirement, a limit is imposed te avoid large exposures on single client
Or counterparty. single debt issue and single equity relatrve to particular issuer company and its group
of companies, As a result, te maximum credit risk is the carrying amount in the statements of
finaticial condition for each class of financial asses except for *Receivable from costomens’ wherein
the Company holds collateral as security ns discussed below,

Collateral and other credit enharcements
The securities purchased by the customers serve as the collateral, Management monitors the market
value of collateral and the exposures on a daily basis,

In addition, the Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines (SCCP) requires ¢ollateral on
negative exposure, which is compuoted based on oulstanding unsetiled teades calculated at current
miarket price and compared with the original value of the trades calculated at their original contracted
price. Negative exposure has to be covered by collaleral such as cash, PSE index securities and PSE
shares.

The effects of offsetting armengements {incleding impact of collateral) are disclosed in he succeeding
rables,

atd
Eftact of remalsing
Figh e of wiri-aly
oo [Bschailing wiphis bs
sy o e @i arl el fingnriad
Lires Im e orda e presesded in collalirsd) dhat de
Fnzmsial awces reeag nicod ol TAprying mmons with T wimbvmemls ol §o bt PAS B3
[T ) [ Tt ilTaseti nifars e Bew il condsian el grifeiia Mt capusary
Wi mpefia] @isets
Mrecivabile frem)
Cusbamers P sinal F- B9 e 412 Fi0d,%8, 779 [ e A
Charing Higas AR AT 4E, T8 447 - = =
Financisd lHakdlitjes
Fanubly n:
IC il vy 131223, ™2 - 13 22V 11LSELAI0 A TR
Tluaping [Heusr 144071 4rk B 704,847 LTRSS - e ]
K3
Eﬁﬂuflmunil{
gl ol wxd-alt’
dunem PR Bding deglet e
e =ik el armroum et nfi Bnascad
Cacas ol Presensd worblapzral ) iha e
Freancul seany recoprired o TN ATt il tha SEIRTIOIES o OO e FAS § X
il of roponting, posied by e (b offing) olfsetisg crictin diniee wl 2mdition ilBtning cdvicha Wei expasani
Fliscml asats
Reéxtiavable frem
A FAL 13258 F- FifTias LEEC R w2 A
Clrarieg Thusw H.DIRIS] 51, 35K WY Rl T Fpl LT #
Fruzcal bilnes
Parontda 10
Customers UTFAL G0 UT A 1A PR Y TEEI0 A3,
Cliarng Hiousa LIRIARuE 15534250 43784400 4R 379K

The Company does not have financial guarantees, loan commitnents and other credii-related liabilities,
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Rivk concentrations

Concentrations anse when a namber of counterpartics arc engaged in similar business activities, or
actavaties in the same geographic regron, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability
1o meet contrachual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
comditions,

The Company's credit exposure by geographic location is concentrated in the Philippines.

The Company 15 also subject to daily calculation of Counterparty Risk Reguirement (CRR) b thie SEC.
The Company calculates its CRR for any of the following countemparty EXPISITES:

1)
by

)
i}
(]

Unsettled customer trades (ansing from customer-to-broker agency relationship);

Unsettled principal trades (ansing from broker-to-hroker or broker-to-exchange/clearing agency
relationship).

Loans and othver dues;

Securities lending and borrowing; and

Other exposures as may be determined by the PSE or SEC.

Risk concentvaitons of e maximum exposure to credit ik

Concentrations anse when a number of coumerparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the sume geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contracmal abligations to be similarly affected by chonges in economie, political or
other conditions.

The following tables show the concentration by industry of the Company’s financial assets:

D cember 31, 2834
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Trade roveivaldes and
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Hshiing cempanies = 13,79 450 13893 740 - IhART B B
ey = - . - o =
Berviee 1) - F A& 700 - - Ko ank, Tg 1.95%%
thbers - Inddvide sk - - 114,781,487 - 11478471 T 4T
PR TER AR FEAS OG0 BN PITE s00,4] ) PERRL AR AR TS 180
- T ——— —
el mvcavabiden rowns o repeivafler S clvsranr dowss and Aoeblr o Gl
AL S febial Fe ceioaeaions w pnieg A B Rl Do S’
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Finiamcizts i Binkab Fod s Uty P47 T84, 158 BT Bl sen PEOSE ) P25 |47 k4R H2 B
Inddusiel (Fuwd aned Fuergys r 5 %
Huldmg companies 23,893, 30 11891 750 A7, TR ERE 1201%
Fropeny - - = -
Servaces (1T 1.047.8H, - - L 1 T G,
Chbhery — Indissdvals = - 14,883, 4 - |4 £E3_T04 4 ity
FUD R SAG W Ta T B34, 105,219 BG4S 00] PII44AE T35 o0 e

" Tiaae fey cyewdes poasun g e raios Jer leerre Kivoed delal breat irie Sease Lo pra
AN S A Mea AT rliarroag and e @R ORE Aasd

The Company ‘s credil exposure by geopgraphse location iz concentrated in the Philippines. Identified
concentration of credit risks i= managed and conrolled.
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Credit quality per clasy of fnancial asseis

Az of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s financial assets classified according 1o credit

guality are as follows;

December 31, 2024

Substandard

. High grade  Standard grade grade Tivtal
Cash and cash equivalkeems P28 TERA0R [ B BI128, 750408
Trade receivpbics® A030 6l U5 TET R62 Gl 573904 165,570,926
Fimmneial emmets o FWVOCT 05,182,998 - - b5, 181994
Crther receivahles [ 1F ) I — X 1040437
Dther noneverend arscls 3064 G - - 30 b
T 0Eb, e 93757, he2 6d BT 504 IRRAIRALS
Ablvwance for expected credil liswes - = I0THE04 32970514}
F20T Sk, hdS FQ5 TET REE B1d 003 300 FJHMTJI;I_
Tradde revaervallis cslar Ll.l"l-l.'|.-|'|'“|-ul"'|'|.'.l\._||:lr.l\.l1 clearimy o and necer rabie Jrivw cusfnmery
Becember 11, 2123
Suhbstandard
High prace  Standard grace grade Tosal
Cash and cash equivalens PUG KO 855 B- = PRO_E{R 01
Traide receivables® . RIS, 155 A,302 4483 LA R TS Th.16E. 245
Finamcial et at FVOLC] T3.004 452 - - T390 452
Oihver peocivables 214,274 = = 116,274
DNBer poncisend assots 3,736,817 - - 3736817
|54 484 AN HoET 445 Al YA 546 I3 92T 44
Allvwanie for expecied credil Insres = 4502 10970 514} (3R AT5 020
Ll b T BR, AT O3 FHI G0, 02 L BT e
———— — —

“lrave revetvehias comniat of recovalivs from leuring hewss anil vl bl i cusimurr

The Company’s bases in grading its financial assets gre as lollows

High grade
Financiof assets at amoriized cost « Casl and cash equivalents, Trade receivables and Other

recelvalies

The Company”s financial assets at amortized cost, which are neither past due not impaired, are
classified a5 high grade, due to their high probability of collection (ic. the counterparty has the
evident ability to satisfy its obligation and the security on the receivables are readily enforceable).

Cash and cash equivalents are considered high grade since these are deposited andior invested with
reputable banks duly approved by the BOD and have low probability of insolvency, Accordingly,
cash and cazh equivalents are classified under Stage 1 as of Decernber 31, 2024 and 2023,

Trade receivables or accounts that fall within T+2 and with high probability of collection dus 1o
apparent ability of the counterparty to settle the obligation and fully secured by fimancial collateral are
considered as high grade. As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, PE.94 million und #6 5 Tmillion of the
tetal receivahles from customers are fully secured by collaterals comprising of cash and equity
securilies of histed companies with a total fair value of #348 81 milhon and #2746 58 million,
respectiviely (Note ),

Lither recervables are accounts from counterparties such as the Parent Company and other financial
institutions with no history of default and are not past due as at the end of the repotting period

For trade and other receivables, an impainment analysis is performed at each reporting dale using a
PrOVISIOn matrix o measure expectad credit losses,
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Fimanciul avzers af FVOC!

The investment is classified as high grade since this 15 a retail treasury bond issued by the Philppine
government and there 1 a high probability of collecting the principal and coupon payments. This is
assessed as low credit risk fimancial asset in view of the Philippine's investment grade credit rating.
Accordingly, as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the financial assets at FVOCI are classified under
Stage 1.

Stan T

Trade receivaies

Standard grade trade receivables are accounts that are beyond the T+2 bat the comesponding
eolbateral valuation 15 sufficient to cover the overdue amount

Subs ard prade
These are accounts that are beyond the T+2 and partially secured or unsecured by collateral.

Impirmend assessment

ke Company recognizes an ECL for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss,
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in aceordance with the
contract acd all the cash flows that the Company expeets 10 recerve, discounted at an approxmmation
of the onginal effective inferest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contraciual terms.

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit Josses that result from defanlt events that are possible
withiti the next 12 months (a2 12-month ECL). For those aredit exposures fur which there has been a
sighificant increase i credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowence is required for credit losses
expected over the remaming life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the defoult {i.e..a
lifetime ECL).

For irade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approsch in calculating ECLs. The Company
toes not track chanpes m credit risk, but instead recogmzes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on ils historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for the financial effect of the financial collaterals, forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the ecconomic environment, Considering the limited historical
default experience and the level of collaieral, the ECL caleulated by the Company for receivable from
customers as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to #3997 million and 39,98 million,
respeciively (Note 9}

The Company applies the low credut risk simplification provided under PFRS 9 in the staging
assessmenl of its cash and cash equivalents and financial assets at FVOCL

Aging Analyzes af Fingnciol Asyels
The aging analyses of the Company s receivable from customers as at December 31, 2024 and 2023
are sumitirized in the following tables (zross of allowance for credit losses )

Ibecember 31, 2024
v past due
Mare than 31 Specifically
Curpent ld days 1571 abawa dars I paireil Tatsl
Reoepvnbhle froem
CLERIOITIETE F129.000, 412 # B PI9970514 B P9 E709 6
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Diecembey 3|, 2023
Dravs past dus
Mo thai 31 Specifically
CLrrard A-14 days 1531 duys days impakred Total
Beocavalile from
CLEOmoTS 15 40T 174 P28 591 B-  RInaT05i4 B BT5GRAIRI

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is genetally defined as the cwrrent and prospective nisk to earnings or capital arising
lrom the Corupany's inability to meet its obligations when they come due without INCUrTIng
unacceplable losses or costs

The Company manages liquidity risk by preparing daily projected and actusl cash flows. Controls and
procedures are in place o ensure that sufficient cash is maintained 10 cover daily operational and
working capital regquirements.

In sddition, the Company™s liquidity position is assessed and managed by maintaining limits on ratio
of aggregate indehredness (Al to net liquid eapital (NLC), which sheuld not exeeed 2,000.0%. NLC
is the equity of the Company adjusted for unrealized gains (losses) on proprietary acconnts,
subordinated liabilities, deferved 1ax assets, deposits for future siock subscription, mirority mieresi, if
any. contingencies and guarantees, and the total ineligible assets.

The NLC of the Company amounted to BI85.91 million and P94, 76 million as of December 31, 2124
and 2023, respectively (Mot 18). The Company’s Al amounted to #2 16,52 million and

P139.85 million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively (Note 18}, The ratio of the
Company’s Alto NLC are 117% and 148% as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respeclively,

Analvsis of financial instruments by remaining contraciual maturities

The financial asscts and financial liabilities are due within one year from the reporting date except for
financial assets at FVOC] amounting to P63.28 million and $24.04 million as of December 31, 2024
and 2021, respectively, which are due beyond one year from the reporting date,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk thal the value of an invesmment will decrease due 1o movements in market
factors such as, but not limited 1o, mierest rate risk or the risk that interest rates will chiange; cumency
risk or the risk that foreign exchange rates will change; commodity risk or the risk that commodity
prices will change: equity price nsk or the risk that stock and other index prices will change.

The Company’s markel nsk onginates {rom its securities in proprictary account which are held for
trading purposes and financial instruments classified as FYOCT investments, In accordance with
RBCA requirements. limit is imposed for all equity, debt and foreign exchange positions of the
Company.
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Equity price risk
Equity price risk 1s the risk that the fair values of equity securities increase or decrease as o result of
changes in the levels of equity mdices and the value of ndividual stocks.

The following tables set forth the smpact of changes in the Philippine Stock Exchange index (PSEi)
an the Company's neit unrealized gain on financial assats at FYTPL in 2024 and 2023 (amounts are in
millisns):

2024 2023
Changes in PSE: +H10.00%% 1000 +10.00%5 -10.00%
Increase (decreased in net unreplized
gain on FVTPL invesiments #4146 [F4.46) B4.50 (B4.50)

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the impact of changes in the NAV per unit of investments in
LITF held as financial asscis at FVTPL are as follows (amounts are in millions)

p{ e 2023
Changes in NAY =+ NI A2 = [N TR & | D0 - | 01, 0res,
Imcrease (decrease) in ael urrealized
gans on FVTPL investments P5.74 (#5.74) B5.34 {Fi34)

fnterest rate risk

Interest rate risk anses from the possibility that changes it the interest rates will affect fulure cash
Hows of the fimancial instruments. Interest rate risk of the Company anises from financial assets at
FYOC] with fixed interest rates. Potential changes in interest rates woubd impact equity as follows:

= 2024 B
Change in interest rates (in basis points [bp|)
25hp rise 1tbp rise 10bp Tall 25bp fall

Change in Equity {B593,036) (P237.958) PI38,955 P59, 268
2023
Chamge in intetes) rates (in basis poinis)
15bprise  10bp nse | by Tl 25bp fall
Change n Equity (P38, 696) {P55.597) P35, 750 139,689

Cash and Cash equivalents

This aceount consss of;

2024 L 1k
Cash in banks BT3 287077 POO R0, 03 6
Shon-izmm placemenis 53,471,331 =
Petty cash 1, 84D [, (H

Fi28,768,408 _ P99.519.936

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 49.2-1, Physical Possession or Control of
Securtics, which covers customer protection wnd custody of securities, the Company mamtams a
special reserve bank account for the exclusive benefits of its customers amountmg to 4,91 million
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and #3367 million a3 of December 31, 2024 and 20221, respectively, These amounts are included i
the Company’s cash in banks. The Company”s reserve requirement is determined monthly based on
SELC's preseribed computations. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company i5 in compliance
with SRC Fule 49.2-1.

Cash in banks bewr annual interest rates ranging from 0.05% 10 0.65% in 2024 and 2073, Interest
mcatne eamed from the deposit in banks amounted to PD.26 million and B0 36 million in 2024 and
223, respectively

Short-lerm placements refer to special savings depasit with an original term 1o maturity of three
miomths and less with an imterest tate of 6.00% in 2024, Interest income earned from short-term
placements amownted to P3O0 million in 2024,

Financial Assets at FVTPL and Financial Assets at FVOCT

Financial Assets at FYTPL
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, financial assets at FVTPL of the Company are as follows:

2024 2023
Cuoted equity securines 47 217 490 R47 271736
Llnng snvestment trust funds 57,409,414 531 438,871

P104,626.904 100,712,607

Dividend mcome recognized from quoted equity secuntics amounted to PO.60 millien and
20U mallion in 2024 and 2023, respectively,

Met realized and unrealized gains on financial assets at FVTPL recognized in the staterments of
meome under “Trading gains {losses| - net” amounted wo:

2024 2023
Sold secuniics (P6.294.577) (F100,573)
Outstanding securities 1,688,329 62 6]
(46040, 248) Pi61,588
Financial Aszets 30 FVOCT

Financial asseis al FVOCI penain to the Company s mvestment in government debt securities
2024 2023

Current portion - 249,954 51|

N om=curment poriien 65,282,998 24,04 1,671

P65 282,908 73,906,482

These securities bear anmual interest rates of 6.25% m 2024 and from 2.63% to 5,000 in 2023 with
remaining matarities of 4.16 yvewrs in 2024 and from 003 10419 years in 2023, Inlérest income
earned from the debt securities amounted to P4.26 million and P1.70 million in 2024 and 20723,
respeciively.
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The movements of net unrealized gain (Joss) on financial assets al FYOO] are as follows-

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of vear {P588.116) (P1_567,986)
Unrealized gains (bosses) duning the vear (306,671) 079,870
Realized loss on sale of securities 1,177,784 -
Balance at end of vear BINI 007 (ESEH 116

In 2024, the realized loss on sale of financial assets a1 FVOCL amounting to #1.18 million is
presented in the statements of income under * Trading zains {losses) — net’.

Reccivable from and Payable to Clearing House

Outstanding balances of receivable and payable to clearing house consist of the fro levir iz

2024 2023
Receivable from cleanng house P PATO 064
Payable to cleaning house 95,669,162 4,278,607

(#5669, 162) (#3.794.643)

Amounts owistanding as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 were subsequently collected or settled m
fanuary 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Receivahle from Customers

This account consists mainly of receivable fiom customers for purchase transactions that are expected
to be seltled within 2 trading days sfier the reporting date for 2024 and 2023, Details of receivable
from customers follow:

2824 23
Misiw Securmity b alstion ey Sesurity Valuwion
Balaper Ling Sl Balusce Lusg Shonl
Fullly seoured scoumit.: —
hfacr than E5 FROW LM RLLg eas 17 ¥ PrIIDAE Pl 4Ee R P-
Bezivaen J4EF% 1o 2500 - - - 5,383 w9 Sl
Lesa thay [0S V5 TATRAL S5 400,01 - LR eS| a5
L HiCumed I pound ol BT G - - SEUFAE 530
LERATRNA A4 405,726 - TH634.2R] Fi4 ] 10w
Less allermarce for credil losses Bkl N - - I3ATSIEZR)
FITRANEEIT  Buddd.dns The B FL TESA%A P3S4 R "
2 - =

Receivable from customers as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 were collected in January 2025 and
January 2024, respectively,
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An anabysis of the allowance for credit losses for the Cotnpany s receivable from customers is as

follows:
2034
Dhays past die
Mare than 31
Current 4-14 davs 15=3] davs days Tatal
Rulence at Jamery | P F4,512 B PICOTRSI4 FIOOTREG
Provisions For {reversals from| credit losses - (4.512) - - {4.513
Allowance for credi bsses - B B FISOTOS14 B30T 504
ik
Chays passt due
Sare than 31
Curzept 4-1ddays  15-3] days B EVE Total
Bakanes at Jarsiary | P PR EL - P- F14.845
Frenvdaians for (reversals from) enedit losscs - (10,333) - 39ETRAI4 39 WALIET
Allsancs tor credl Bosses F- Bd.502 B~ PARGTRA1A PRO.STE 000
11 nher Receivables
This account conzists of!
2024 2023
Accried mnlerest receivable ’ FRAR. 714 Bl1XEAT
Other recervables 192,723 TLRST
F1.041,437 P2i6.274
Other receivables pertain primarily to a three-vear boan granted 1o an employee as par of Lhe
financing plan of the Company,
Il. Property and Equipment
The composition of and the movements in this account are as follows:
plirf ]
Farnbture and  Tramspisristion
Condeminium Fixnare Equipme i Tatal
L mit
Balamce at e beginming of the vear #11.362,541 B3 Y60 RSO 1, R0, b1 BT, 1t il
Acquisiting 2053571 el 62T = EEIERE]
Derecognitions - - (BB (R I HMH
Ralanec af il énd of tha year 13406512 4924 A5G 12060 19551045
Accumeuluted Depreciationg
Haknce ai the bepianing of the year L3614 X, 2H), 559 TI3,588 5108751
Dlepreciaikm 2410246 654441 ELL IS bl L213197%
Dercooeniinms - = {029, 0a0 ) i 20, iR}
Balances at the easd of the vear LS4 T.640 3,855,000 430,300 £8TLTH
Mt Bisak % alue P11,820.572 Pl 069,450 FT79, 900 l'l._3_.,ﬁ-'.|'ﬂ.!ﬂ:|-




T

225
- Furniture sed  Trapsportstion

Canbiikinium Fixture E guipmment Trstal
Cast
Balmce nr e beginising of the vear o] L T ¥ 1 HT01G RLI75. T P17,535 734
A i i s = 1646, 840 THs, e RN 120
Dicrecogtiilirm 7 4] 00 150N
Balence af the end of the year 11,363.54] 3,963 Hs 140,064 E7, 1465, Bl
Accumulaied Depreciation
Balatsie a1 the begioming of e vour LI1735a 2588 R37 1,325 415 5032028
Drepreciation 227158 flET32 NTITR 1,236, Taj
D-:rec@mau: - - {70000 NELLIRE
Balances o die end of the year L] 3 HIDSHY PRI T 5 268,79
Net Baak 'I-'am_ PIEDLE 327 FT63 270 Bl |06 472 189 (rd

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the cost of fully depreciated items of property and equipment
still in wse amounted to#2 56 million and P2.29 mullion, respectively,

. Intangible Assets

1 2 Trading Right

Under the PSE rules, all exchange membership seats are pledged anits full value to the PSE to secure
the payment efall debis io other members of the exchange arising out of or in connection with the

present or future membaers” contracts.

Republic Act (RA) No. 8799, entitled SR, prescribed the conversion of the PSE into a stock
corporalion effective on August 8. 2001, pursuant to a conversion plan approved by the SEC. In
August 200, the SEC approved the conversion plan with the following salient feamres. among

chers:

& the existing 184 metnbet-brokers as of August 8, 2001 are ehgible 1o subsenibe to the shares and

10 reldin access 1o the trading facilities of the PSE;
euch member shall subscribe to 50000 shares at a par value of £1.00;

c:. the balance of the members’ contnbution amounting to P277.40 million shall be treated as

additional pad-m capifal;

. the separation of ownership of the PSE from access o tradimg:
e dssuanee of cenilfeate of tradimg nght;
f. poliey of inposing a moratorium on the issuance of new rading right; and

g transferability of trading righs.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, (he carrving values of exchanpe trading right fallows:

Cost P12,000,000
Less: allowance for impaimment losses 4 000 000
PEAOO, 000

The exchange trading right is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when it was aoquired
because it s expected 1o generate net cash inflows indefinitely. Thus, it shall not be amotized but

shall be subject for impairment af every reporting date. 1n 2024 and 202

ety

the Company did not

recognize any impamment loss or gain from reversal of impairment on the exchange rading right as
its last transacted price in the PSE remains the same
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Computer Software
Movements in computer software arc as follows.
024 2023
Cost
Balance al beginning and end of vear P5.516,216 P5.516.216
Acvcumulated Amartization
Balance at begimning vear 4,292,470 3.572.37%
Amaortization - 586,746 720,094
Halance at the end of the year 4879216 4,292,470
Net Book Valog FoT7, 000 1,223 746
I3, Prepavments and Other Assets
Thiz accoun conssts of;
2024 2023
Current assets
Momlinancial sssels
Frepaid 1axes #6,674.267 5 200 774
hers 1,345,698 2,804 02
8,019,965 8103754

Moncurrent assel
Fivancml msset
Contribution te Clearmg and Trade Guaranies
Fund {CTGF) 2.964.646 3736817
F11.984.611 PlE40 611

Frepaid taxes periain to excess tax payments and creditable withholding taxes,

Contrbutions to the CTGE are refundable to the clearing members upon cessation of their business
and'or termination of their membership with the Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines.

14 Payable to Customers
This accouwnt consists mainly of pavable to customers for sale transactions that are expected to be
setiled within 2 trading days after the reponting date in 2024 and 2023, Pavable to customers as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 were paid in Januzry 2025 and 2024, respactvely.

Detmls of pavable to customers fallow:;

2024 3
Security Becurity
Money Balance Valuatinn-Long Muoncy Balance Wauhmbon-Lopg
With maney balances #131,223,792 BIU32.635,9349 POT A0 BLA13 408,144
Without momey balanegs - 44,126,766,30 - 45412957430
FI31I23.792  B47059.405,248 PUTRR].08] BT 026,365.574
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15 Acerued Expenses and Other Liabilities

This pecount congists of

024 2023
Financial Habilities
Accrued expenses P4 THES10 P7,227.670
Cetitral depository payable TIE 042 85,986
5,513,552 7313656
Muonfinancial Habitity
D £ BIR 1,514,971 M5, 145

P5.018,523 B3 18,80

Due to BIR consists of withholding tax pavable, VAT payable, and stock transaction tax payabie,

I%, Retirement Liability

The Company has an unfunded non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan covermg all its
officers and regular employees. The retirement plan is administer=d by CBC's Trust Group which
iets s the trustee of the plan, Under the plan, all covered officers and employees are entitled to cash
benefits after salisfying certain age and service requiretments. The latest actuarial valuation studies of
the refirement plan were made as of December 31, 2024,

The principal actuarial assumptions used in 2024 and 2023 in detfermining Lhe retirement liability for
the Company’s retiremnent plans are shown below:;

2024 20X3
[Mscount rate i 2% 5.99%%
Salury increase pate i, (2 £ (MG
Average vears of service d.14 194
Tumowver rale 3.58% 13.25%

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the present value of defined benefit obligation of the Company
amounicd 1 P7.24 milbon and 83, 76 million, respectively, Changes in the defined benefit obligation
follow:

2024 2023
Balance af beginning of vear F3.7hi,679 P4.222 986
Betirement expense o profit or loss:
Cutrrent service cost 1,037,177 1069 957
Interest cost 225,260 286,741
1.262.443 1,356,708
Eemeasurement losses ( gains) on defined benefi
hability
Changes in financial assumptions (23,554) 425,124
Changes n demographic assumption 1,954,334 G700
Deviatons of experience from assumptions 184,862 143,718
1.215.642 569,512
Benefils payment = (2388507
FT.I18. 784 #3760 699
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The sensitivity analysis below hiss been determmed based on the impact of reasonably possible
changes of each significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the reponting date,
assurning all other assumptions were held constant

2024 2023
Discount rate:
1% (#1153, %16} B2, 712
18 1,444,593 635,708
Salary increase rate:
I %n 1.4 398 13,355
1% (1, 142 44%9) (514.214)

The maturily analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as of December 11, 2024 and 2023
follerws:

2024 2023
More than | year to 5 years #1.510.252 #1,583,733
More than 3 yvears to 10 years 8322837 2,760,678
More than [0 vears o 15 vears 2447502 T.037. 001
More than |5 vears o 20 vears 14, B 850 L5049 088
More than 20 vears 151.478.195 225,290,537

17 Ineome Taxes

[ncome Laxes nclude corporate income tax and final tax paid. Final tax paid pertains to the 20.00%
withhiolding tax on gross interest income from cash in bank., deposit substitutes and government
ECCUrTtEes,

Republic Act (RA) Ne. 9317, An Act Amending National Intemnal Revenue Code, as amended by BA
Nao. 10863 otherwise known as the Tax Reform for Acceleration and [nelusion i TRAINT and RA No
11334 otherwise known as Corporste Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises {(CREATE),
provides that regular corporate income tax {RCIT] rate shall be 25,0004 while interest CRpEnse
allowed ag a deductible expense is reduced to 20.00% of interest income subject to final tax.

CREATE Law reduced the rate of Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) from 2% 1o 1%,
however, Revenue Memorandum Cireular (RMC) No. 69-2023 reverted | MCIT) to 2,005 stan ing
July 1. 2023 An MCIT of 2.08R%s un gross meome is computed and compared with the RCIT. Any
exvess MOIT over RCIT can be used as a tax credit against future income tax liability for the next
three years. In addition, the Net Operating Loss Cary Over (NOLCO) 35 allowed as a deduction from
taxable income in the next three years from the year of inception.

Opticnal standard deduction {OSD) equivalent o 40.00% of pross income may be climed as an
alternative deduction in computing for the RCIT. Gross income shall mean gross sales less sales
retumns, discounts and allowances and cost of services. The Company ebected 1o claim itemized
deductions instead of OSD m computing for the RCET in 2024 and 2023,

N Law
Bepublic Act {RA) No, 10963, the Tax Reform for Acceleration and Inclusion {TRAINY is the first
package of the comprehensive tax reform program of the government, The bill was signed into law on
Drecember 19, 2017 and ook effect on Janwary 1, 2018, amending some provisions of the old
Philippine tax svsiem.



S 40

Except for resident foreign corporations, which under the said law, is subject to the 7.50%. tax on
interest income of foreign currency deposit was increased o 1 5.00% under TRAIN. Documentary
stamp tax on bank checks, drafis, certificats of deposit not bearing interest, all debt instruments. bills
of exchange, letters of eredit, mongages, deeds and others are now subjected to  higher rate.

CREATE Act
BA No. 11534 otherwise known as Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises
{CREATE) was signed into law last March 26, 2021, and became effective on April 11, 2021.

Provision for income tax consists of

2024 2023

Current
MCIT P& TO 550 P411.468
Final tax 1,50k 032 466,053
#F2185.501 BRTT521

The balances of excess MCIT over RCIT with their comesponding vears of expration are 35 follows:

Expess Excess
MOIT MCIT
over RCIT Excess  owver RCIT Excess
Applied  MCIT over Applisd MUTT ower
Wear - Availmen Previews RCIT Cument RCIT  Expiry
Inception el Amount Yoar's Exprred Y car unapplicd  Vear
2023 P20 0 P- P P PHIZ 90 2026
2024 L P— g 6GTRA30 1027
PRRA 51D b | PRER 5|4

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company s recognized deferred taxes are as follows:

2034 2723
Dreferved tax Habiliry on:
Unrealized foreign exchange gains Fl110.203 [
Unrealized MTM painz on FA 8t FYTPL 144,444 -
Deferred tax asset on:
Accrued expenses 254,647y -
() p-
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The components of the Company s unrecognized deferred lax assets as af December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively, are as follows:

2024 2023
Allowance for credit losses #10,9492 620 B109%3 757
MWOLCO 3,078,927 =
Retirement liabilicy LEM.6%6 940,175
Excess MOCIT over RCIT RA#.519 208,960
Accrued expenses 95,354 972,126
Unrealized mark-to-market loss {gain) on financial
assets at FVoCl 70, 749) 147,024
Unrealized mark-1o-msarket loss on financial assets at
FVTPL 277,639

P16,794.376 £13 530,687

The reconciliation between the statutory income tag and the effective income tax follows:

224 2023
Staruiety InGome by (PT25,233) (#Y9,577,9402)
Tax effects of:
Exeass MCIT aver RCIT H79.559 208 %l
Change in other unrecognized deferred tax asset 2,238,908 L0, (M5 654
Mandeductible expenses 515,508 372,674
Tax paid and fax-cxempt inceme {523.241) (351.815)
Effective incmme tax BZ 185,591 BRT7.521
|3 Equity

Detanls of the Company’s share capital as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

24 2023
Shares Aminunts Shorcs Amwunts

Commuon stock - BUAW par valee

Augtharized, issusd amd

outsranding D2, 000,00 15004 MH) 15000000 P15, 000,0100
Preferred stock - FEOLU0 par vilue

Authorized shares S, B0 a0 =

[ssued and outstanding 1250, 000 12,50 (W - -
Fhare premium RO Z0 000 13, XL

#262,700 000 162, TO0,00K)

On May 15, 2013, the Company's Board of Directors { BOD} approved the increase in authorized
capital stock (ACS) of the Company from #150 million to #2080 million, composed of 15 million
common shares and 5 million preferred shares both with a par value of #10,00 per share.

Cm Seprember 26, 2023, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with the Parens
Company Where the latter shall subscribe to 1.25 mullion preferred shares at a subseription price of
#3000 per share o an aggregate ssued price of #1100 million. On October 10, 2023, the Parent
Company paid #100 million for the additional subscription of 1.2 million prefermed shares at o
subsciption price of PRI per share.
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As of December 31, 2023, no application for the merease in authorized capital stock has been
presented or Bas been filed with the SEC. Henve, In accordance with SEC FRE No. (06, a5 revised on
January b, 2022, the P100 million subscription 15 presented as *Deposit for fiture siock subseription’
under current liabilities of the statement of financial condition,

On December 27, 2024, the Company s application for an increase in authorized capital stook was

approved by the SEC. On the same date, the 1.25 million preferred shares were issued to the Paretil
Company and the booking of the * Depasit for future stock subscription” was reclassified 1o Capital

Stock — Preferred and Additional Paid-ln Capiral.

Stock Grants
I Light of CBC"s 100th anniversary, its BOD approved on August §, 2020 a Centennial Stock Grans
Plan 10 issue commaon shases 10 eligible grantees.

The Centenaial Stock Grant Plan was approved and ratified by the stockholders on October 1, 2020,
subject 10 the approval of the relevant regulatory agencies. New shares would be issued from CBC's
authorized but unissued shares in favor of the Group's regular emplovees and certain other officers
and contractual employees as of August 16, 2020, nummbering around 8,400, The stock grant would
invalve the issuance of around 5.0 million shares of CBC.

On August @, 2021, the Fhilippine Stock Exchange (PSE) approved CBC s applhication to list
$A451,600 common sharcs, with a par value of B10L00 per share, Lo cover the Group's Centennial
Stock Grant Plan, CBC issued o total of 5.29 million shares on September 1, 2021, The difference
between the fair valee of the stock grants upon ssuance of shares and the fair-value previously
recognized when the shares vested is recognized in the statement of incomse.,

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the cutstanding values of the stock grants awarded by CBC o
the Company's employees amounted to 007 million recognized under ‘Other equity” in the
statement of financial condition

ital Ma mient
The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management are to casure that it complies with
extemally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios
in order w support its business and to maximize stockbolders” valoe

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the nsk charsctensstics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital strecture, the Company may increase its suthorzed capital stock and fssue new shares or
chbtain emporary financial assistance from its Company as may be necessary

Eegulatory Cualitying Capital

The I013 Implementing Rules and Hegulations of the SRC effective in November 2015 include,
amoag others, the terms and conditions for registration and subsequent renewal of license applicable
1o both exchonge trading participants and non-exchange broker dealers as follows:

ab Tw require compliance with RBCA Rules for Broker Dealers, which requires net liquid capital of
#5.00 million or 5.00%% of Al, whichever is higher; or B2.30 million or 2.50% of Al whichever is
higher, for broker dealers dealing only in proprictary shares and not holding securites; and
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b} To require ummpaired paid-up capital of BIOO.O0 million for broker dealers, which are either first
time registrants or those acquiring existing broker dealer firms and will participate in a registered
chearing agency; P30.00 million plus a surety bond for existing broker dealers not engaged in
market making transactions; and #2.50 million for broker dealers dealing only in proprictary
shares and not holding securities.

RBCA ratio of & broker dealer, computed by dividing the NLC by the Total Risk Capital Requirement
{TRCR ), should not be less than | 10.00%. NLC amd TRCR are computed based on the existing SR,
NLC consists of total equiry adjusted for unrealized gains (losses) on proprietary sccounts,
subordinated liabilities, deferred tax assets, deposits for future stock subseription, EinGEity interest, if
any. contingencies and guarantees, and the total ineligible assets. Also, the Al of every stockbroker
should pot exceed 2.000.00% of its NLC and at all times shall have and maintain NLC of at least
B3.00 million or 5.00% of the AT whichever s higher.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2023, the Company is in compliance with the RBCA ratio. The RBCA
ratio of the Company as reported to the SEC as of December 31, 20724 and 2023 is shown in the 1able
bl

2024 2023
Eligibility for NLC P221.449.799 128,385,935
Ineligible assets {35,537.021) {33,520 028
NLC 185912774 04 TG 00T
Operauonal risk 12,144 438 10,576,248
Position risk 15,176,203 14,703,671
Counterparty risk - -
Large exposure nisk 2.614,427 W07
[RCRE 29,935,158 25,432 008
Al P116.823.276 P139,851,851
5.0% of AL 10,841,164 0,992 593
Required NLC 10,841,164 6,992 593
Met nsk-based capital excess 175071,614 BT, TeT315
Fatie of A to ML 117% 1489
RBCA ratio b2i% 373%

Further, SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16 dated November 11, 2004 provides the guidelines on the
adoption in the Philippines of the RBCA Framework for all registered brokers dealers in aceordance

with the SRC. These guidelines cover the following risks: (a) position or market risk, (b} credit risks
such as counterpany, setllement, large exposure, and margin financing risks, and (¢) opemtional risk.

The following are the definition of terms used m the above computation:

Tnelicrible aaoiets
These pertain (o fived assets and sssers which cannot be readily converted into cash.

Olperational visk requirement

Thus is the amount required to cover a level of operational risk, Operational risk is the CXPOSULE
associzied with commencing and rematning in business anising separately from exposurcs covered by
other risk requirements. I is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed intemal PIOCEsses,
people and systems which inchade, among others, risks of fraud, eperational or seitlement failure and
shortage of Bquid resources, or from extemal events,



~dlf

Pasiiton risk reguiremen

This is the amount necessary (o accommeodate a given level of position risk. Position tisk is the rigk
to which a broker dealer is exposed to and arising from securities held by it as a principal or as
proprietary or dealer account,

Conrferparty risk regquivements
This 15 the amount necessary to accommodate a given level of counterparty risk. Counterparty risk 15
the risk of a counterparty defaulting on sts financial obligation to a broker dealer,

Al

This i the wtal money liabilities of 4 broker dealer arising in connection with any transaction
whatsocver, and includes, among other things, meney borrowed, mongy payshle against securnes
loaned and securities fail=d to receive, the market value of securities borrowed to the extent Lo which
m equivalent value is paid or credited (other than the market value of margin securities borrowed
from customers and margin securities borrowed froen non-cusiomers], cuslomers’ and non-cuslomers’
free credit balances, and credit balances in customens” and non-customers” accoun having short
posilions in securities, but subject to certain exclusions,

Reserves

SRC Rule 49.1 (B), Reserve Fund, of the SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16, requires that every
broker dealer shall annually appropriate a certain minimum percentage of its audited profit after fax
amd transfer the same to appropristed retained camnings, Minimum appropriation shall be 30.00%,
20000 and 10.00% of profit afier tax for broker dealers with unimpaired paid-up capital between
P 1000 million to #30.00 million, between #30.00 million to #5000 million and more than

B3000 million, respectively,

Further, the Market Regulation Department of SEC issued 1 position paper relative to interpretalion
and implementation of RECA rles dated October 30, 2006. This prevides a moideline on how to
apply the SRC Rule 49.1 (B), Reserve Fund particularly on a scenano where the trading participant
his incurred a loss or has a deficit. When the Retained Earmings (RE) is in deficit, all the current and
future earnings should be used 1o wipe out the deficit in RE, before any available surplus is used 1o
determine appropriation.

The Company is in a deficit position of P39.47 million in 2024 and #3438 million in 2023
Accordingly, the Company has not made appropriations for the years 2024 and 2023, The cumulative
appropriation as of December 31,2024 and 2023 amounted 1o PO48 million.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company has complied with all extemally imposed capital
requirements.

1%, Commissians

This aceount consists of

2024 23
Brokenng commission P29.233,432 P25,112.607
Initial public offering commyission 1314744 416,658

30,548,576 BI5.520.265
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Brokering commission of P2.43 mullion and #3.61 million pertained to transactions with related
parties in 2024 and 2023, respectively {see Note 22),

. Research and Marketing Fees

This accouil conssts of:

024 2023
Marketing and promotional fees 15,155 301 B15 809 098
Research fees 2400, 000 2,400, 004

P17,555.301 P1E200. 69

These fees pertain 10 wansactions with the Parent Company in 2024 and 2003, respectively
{see Maote 22)

. Miscellaneous Income and Operating Expenses

Miscellapeous [ncome
This necount consists of

2024 e

Custodianship F1.500,000 LS00, 000
Foreign exchiange pains (losses) 440,811 (66,151)
Miscellaneous income 576 4,759
¥1.946.537 Bl 435, 608

Operating Expenses

Infonmation lechnology expenses include sofiware maintenance, computer services and subscription
for computer firewall application and fees paid to PCCI (Note 22). Communication and supplies
include ensts incurred for office telephone servicoss, intemet charges, postage and other office
supplies. Enfertamment, amusement and recreation include reimbursable expenses of the Company’s
officers. Management and other professional fees pertain primarily to fees paid to the Ultimate
Parent Company (MNote 22, external anditor and actyary

Miscellaneous expenses consist of:

2024 2023

Filing fees P1,239,004 B-
Advertising snd promolions i 449 611,527
Repairs and maintenance S9T.857 333,226
Membership fees and dues 35,392 25,750
Trainings and seminars 11,850 2,071
Bank charges 5.8 15,625
Others K179 391,299
£3.715.687 Pl 3IR3 408




221, Related Party Transactions

Partics are considered o be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the

ather party or exercise significant mfluence over the other

decisions. The Company’s related panties include:

pary in making financial and operating

*  Key management personnel. close family members of key management personmnel and entities
which are controlled, ssgmaficantly influenced by or for which significant voting power 1s held by
key management personnel or thewr close family members;

#  The Parent Company;

The Ultrmate Parent Company; and
Affiliates or ather related parties, which are associated companies, subsidiaries, ventures,
including subsidianes of associates and joint ventures of the venturets.

In 20124 and 2023, total remunerations of key management persontie] include shori-term employee
benefits amounting to #2079 million and #1795 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, transactions with related parties are as follows:

TR 2l
Amvami! LETHETET 1T Ao ven:’ Datsandiay
Cane RS Hulange Volupe hidlaae: sdure, Torre, gl cosidiinm
it any i o il O nndrtiae
18
Cash m hank Rl W 00 PR3 175155 Checkmp and sav sy dayusit
| buiding spocial peecnac il il wiered aibe o V%%
[ERTLES L E FLATS HIK 724 el €067, respertivedy
W sl e, ol Be |00 ATE & 11305 854 449
LIT I0%8smictl (e ST asal AT A SEARAT| Plecomess mimstintsmsl mancy
Phacomess 128314, %l TS0 markat s 2adk
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding bolances ot year-end are unsecured and settlement ovcurs in cash, There have been no
tuarantees provided for the related party receivables or pavables. An impairment assessmenl is
undertaken each financial year through a review of the financial position of the related party and the
market in which the related party operates, Mo impairment losses were recognized in 2024 and 2023
for related party transactaons,

Pursuant to the Service Level Agreement, CBC is entited to ®1.00 million per annum management
fee for services rendered ro the Company inchnding human resources. accounting, internal sudit,
treasury operation, administrative services and corporate marketing units, The Service Level
Agreement 15 effective for a period ol three (3) years from Seprember 18, 2017 to 2020, and desmed
automatically renewed for another three (3) years if no written termination is received by either party
within one (|} month from the expiration of the onginal term,

Pursuant to the Service Apreement, PCCT is entited w 80,25 million per anfum management fee for
services rendered 1o the Company meluding technical services to run the Company’s computer
systems and ather computer requirements. The Service Agreement (8 effective for a period of three
i3} years from November 16, 2017 to November 15, 2020, and deemed avtomatically renewed for
another three {3) vears iT no wriflen termination is received by either party within three | 3) months
from the expiration of the onginal Lerm.

3.

Approval of Release of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Company were authorized and approved for issue by the
BOD on March 20, 2025,

- supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulation 15-2010

In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR No. 15-2010 hereunder are the details of Value
Added Tax (VAT) and other taxes paid or acorued by the Company in 2024,

VAT

The Natonal Intemal Revenue Code (NIRC) of 1997 provides for the imposition of VAT on sales of
poods and services, Accordingly, the Company™s sales are subject 1o output VAT while its importations
and purchases from other VAT-registered individuals or corporations are subject w input VAT,

VAT rate 15 [2,00% effective Febroary 1, 2006

In compliance with Revenue Berulaons (RR) No, 3-2024 Section 2( A b which provudes that the EOPT
Act adopts the accrual basis of recognizing sales for both sales of goods and services, inecluding
ransaclions to government of any of its political subdivisions, instrumentalities of agencies, amd
povernment-owned of <controlled corporations (GOCCs ). Hence, all referetices to “gross selling price”,
“gross value in money”, and “gross receipts” shall now be referred to as the “GROSS SALES”,
regardless of whether the sale is for goods under Section 108, of for services under Section 108 of the
Tax Code,

Under Section 3 of RR No. 3-2024, sale or exchange of services, as well as the use or lease of propertics,

as defined in Section 108(A) of the Tax Code shall be subject to VAT, equivalent to fwelve percent
(12%) of the gross sales (excluding VAT,
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Sales and output VAT declared m the Company 's VAT retums filed in 2024

Sales Crutpun VAT

Yaiable sales and other income BT 108 265 P6.g52 02
VAT exempt sales = -
Zero-rated zales = =
Tiotal R57.108. 265 B5 852 92

The amounts of input tax reported are broken down as follows:

Current year's domestic purchases for;

Linods other than capital goods od S0

Services BT S
Current year's purchases of services from

nomrcsilents 2,960
Total allowable input VAT BL376. 475

For the taxable year 2024, the Company made total net VAT pavments amownting e B5.55 million. As
of December 31, 2024, the Company has net VAT payable of B1 86 mullion.

Taxes JoTises
This mecludes all other taxes, Jocal tax, including licenses and permit fees lodged under “Taxes and
heenses” m the Company's statement of mcome for the vear ended Pocember 31, 2024

Luocal taxes and permits BI65, 773
Fringe benefit 1ax 44,709
Real property tax 19,446
DST 16,250
P246,178

Withhodding Taxes

Total
Bemittances Balances
Withholdmng taxes on compensation and benefis #31511,779 PloneR5
Expanded withholding taxes 739617 51,345
Fmal withholding taxes %101 -
Fringe benefits tax 485,047 8.674
Tax Assessments

As of December 31, 2024, the Company has no tax assessments received from the BIR.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
China Bank Securities Corporation

28th Floor, BDO Equitable Tower

BY51 Paseo de Roxas, Brgy. Bel-Air
Makati iy

We have audited the accompanying financial statiements of Ching Bank Securities Corporation & a1
Decenber 31, 2024 and for the year then ended, on which we have rendered the attached report dated
Mdarch 21, 2025

In compliance with Revised Secunties Regulations Code Rule 68, we are stating that the sbove Company
has cight (£} siockhelders owning more than one hundred {1007 shares each.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Redgibtiald G. Radam

Partner

CPA Certificate Mo, | 18866

Tax Identification Mo, 249-000k 2 50

BOAPRC Reg. No. 0001, April 16, 2024, valid unnl August 23, 2026

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998- 141-2024. April 26, 2024, valid until April 25, 2027
PTR No. 10465364, January 2, 2025, Makat City

March 20, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
China Bank Securitics Corporation

281h Floor, BDO Equitable Tower

BI51 Pageo de Roxas, Brgy. Bal-Ajr
Makan City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the Gnancial stalements of China
Hank Securities Corporation (the Company | as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and have issued ous
seport thereon dated March 20, 2023, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinkon on the
basic financial statcments taken as a whele, The schedules listed in the Index to the Supplementary
Schedules are the responsibality of the Company's menagement. These schedules are presented for
purposes of complying with the Revised Secunities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68 and SEC Rule 52.1.
and are not part ofthe basic fimancial statements. These schedules have been subjected 1o the auditing
provedures applied in the audst of the hasic financeal staternents and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all
material respects, the financial information required 1o be set forth therein in relaticn to the busie financial
stalements faken as a whole,

SYCIF GORRES VELAYO & CO.

1 & Radan

Redgibmald G, Radam

Pariner

CPA Certilicate Mo, 1188645

Tax ldentification Mo, 249-0{0(-250

BOAPRC Reg. No. 0001, April 16, 2024, valid until Angust 23, 2026

BIR Accreditation Neo. 08-001598-141-2024, April 26, 2024, valid unti April 25, 2027
PTR No. 10465364, January 2, 2025, Makati City

March 20, 2025
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CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION

INDEX TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

Anies I supplementary Schedules Required by Securities Regulation Code 521

statement of changes in labilines subordinated 1w claims of general creditors
Computatiom of risk-based capilal sdequacy requirement pursuant to SEC Memorandum
Circular oL 16

Infermation relating to the possession or control requirements under SRC Rule 492 -
Amnex 45 -4

Compuotation for determanation of reserve requirements under SRC Rule 492 - Annes
402-B

A report describing any matenal madequacies found 1o exist or Toumd 1o have exisied
simee the date of the previous audit

Results of momthly securities count conducted pursuan 1o SRC Bule 52,000 a3 of
balance sheet dofe
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CHEDULE

CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of China Bank Capital Corporation)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN LIABILITIES
SUBORDINATED TO CLAIMS OF GENERAL C REDITORS
DECEMEER 31, 2024

Ihere are no liabilities subordinated 10 claims of general credstors.



CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION

SCHEDULE ||

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of China Bank Capital Corporation})
RISK-BASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY WORKSHEET
PURSUANT TO SEC MEMORANDUM CIRCULAR NO. 16

DECEMBER 31, 2024
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SCHEDULE 111

CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION
(A WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF CHINA BANK CAPITAL CORPORATION)
INFORMATION RELATING TO THE POSSESSION OR
CONTROL REQUIREMENTS UNDER SRC RULE 49.2
DECEMEER 31, 2024

Customers' fully paid securities and excess margin securitics not in the broker's or dealer’s pirssession or
controd as of the report date (for which instractions to reduce (o possession or control had been issued as
ol the report date but for which the required action was not taken by respondent within the time frame
specified under SRT Rule 49,21

Marked Valustion: ML "
Mumber of ltems: MIL

Customers” fully paid secunties and excess margin securities for which instructions 1o reduce 1o
pessession or vontrol bad not been issued as of the report date. excleding items arising from “temporary
lags which resubt from normal business operations™ as permitted under SRC Rule 49,7

Miarketr Valuanon: NIL
Mumber of 1ems: NIL
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SCHEDULE 1V

CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION
(A WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF CHINA BANK CAPITAL CORPORATION)
COMPUTATION FOR DETERMINATION OF
RESERVE REQUIREMENTS UNDER SRC RULE 49,2

DECEMEER 31, 2024

Miﬁﬂuﬁi

1. Frew credil bakance audd oclser credit balance in customers” scourity
accounis,

1. Monies bomowed collalcmiizad by sceurities carmed for the aocouin of
cLslners.

3. Monies payable agairst customers’ seouritics oaned,
4, Cusiomers secartees failed o recsive

5 Credit balaews in firm aceounts, which are atrbutable to Frinwipal sales
Y G g rs.

G Markel value of stock dividends siock splns and similar distribanion
receivable oulstamding over 30 calendar days old.

T Market vahue of the shor scourity count difTerences over 30 calendar days
ol

8. Murket value of shoet secarities and credits (ot 1o be offset by long or by
chebite) i all suspense secounts vver 30 calendar davs

9. Markel value of securifies, which are in icansier in @xosss of 80 calendar
davys amed havve not bom confimeed o be (b lansfer by the mnsier agert o
Lhe issmer dumng the 20 days

14k Duebit balances in customens” cash or margin accounss easlmling
unsecurcd aecoumits ard acevants doubtinl of eollection,

11, Securities borrowed so effectusic shon sules by customer ansd seouritiss
bomowed o naske deliver oo cusiomers” securities failed 1o delivery

12 Faiked to delivery custmers” securities not alder than 30 calesdar days.

13, Dnhers « sulespurchuses of marketable seeuritie:

Twtal

et Credin { Dehil)

le:qulrud Foezerve (1000% ol net credin if making a wegkly
woanpuiabion and 1R3% ol maonthlv)

e dite [ bits
P03, 182,913
g, | =4, 330
|
PB.254,541)
E199 157242 BB 254 gy
Bio 11233
BIO0, 112500
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CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION
(A WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF CHINA BANK CAPITAL CORPO RATION)
A REFORT DESCRIBING ANY MATERIAL INADEQUACLES
FOLND TO EXIST OR FOUND TO HAVE EXISTED
SINCE THE DATE OF THE PREVIOUS AUDIT
DECEMBER 31, 2024

There were no maters :m-uh'ing the ':..'L'II'|1|'|:I|'|.:I,' ‘¢ mtemal control sirscture and pt wermium-. that were consadered to
be matensl weakneqses,
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NAMEOF ISSTER TARCATELN

_ UODE HTOCK MAME VALLT TRANAFRR GITICE o TUITAL Mok OF SIARES  MARKET PRICE MARKET YALUE

ALCD ARTHA LAND CORPORATION LE0% 458 1EQE 45K ARRD 5a5.802
ALCPE Erthaland Corparation - Senes O Preferred Shares W1LALO 301,213 3644000 13%0A1 9za
ALCHF ANTHALAMD CORPORATION SCRICS F *REMEARCD SHRARE S ATID Tl T J50.0000 375,717 %00
Al AVALA LAND, BMC, 17861 17, B06 6L 20, HEW AbE 533 M
ALLTY Allay Marls, Irc Z0ZESLDGE 10505 0 0.13x0 Mhar1sr
AL AVALALAMND LOGISTICS HOLDIMG S CORP, A L5RE 500 A1 58K S0np 1.7000 O, P00 A5
ALTER ALTEAMEAGY HOLOINGS CORPORATION 1530000 13,816,000 1, 1K 16 557 000
AN AN URTURE 1MC 1555 600 1555 s00 05100 THLASE
ANS A SORIHG CORE 13330207 1% 330,197 13 #8000 264,473 AR T
AF ARDITIT FOWYER CORFOREATION 1,114,900 1,114,904 3. T000 42031730
ARL AR GROUE, INC X 10000 2.7, 004 01530 A1 A%
AL APDLLC GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. B, oS O AR Ael 0 [l 2 ] 2,599 840
APO ARGAD PHIL HLDGS COSP. 400,650 And,E50 QA0 1B, 7S
P ALTLS PRQPENTY WEREGLE, INC Lpadn 1 aas B30 BERIT
AR HFE RARING T TN 5155 587 € 155,587 ya500 21,236,775
1] ABEA MINRG B N COHF 3T, DO M 257, 004, 000 TLOaE 1,50k, 00
aRa, ARANETS PROPERTIES, INC 1R AT 121,401 g 1 6T 900
AREI AREIT, INC. %2104, 161 5,404, LED 3rasno 197 4497 a7
AL R Rindeg oo 161 366,001 160,364,001 L2300 166,306 981
AT ATLAL COMNS. FMNG. B DEVT. DDAP BETALS AR7.055 438 33071 543
aT ASIAN TERRB LS, P, 32,7ME 31,70 17. 0O 555,900
AT ATH WO NGS, IR "R 11, V16 10,376,000 05200 5 TED I3
ATHE ATH HOLDEMGES, INC “B" 4,744,004 4,744,084 8,52 0 AR BRD
Al ASLA LIMITED BANE DORFORATHOIN 2183 M 213,300 &L 5000 13,925,450
AL HRELL M RESOURCES CORP e, M A, W10 215900 3,499,081
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£nc
LEH
CEBCP
41

MAME CRF ISSUER LOCATICN
STHE NANE VAULT THRANEFER OFFICE s TOTAL MR OF SHARES MARKET FRICE MARRET YALLE

Bakai KiFruitas Ing HIF0m 637,000 AR 243,730
BEWGUAET COd P 5" IO GIE PELE 5urm Hil.2Th
EEMGLIEET CO#P '3t 27,00 17000 3.5u600 54 260
BENGIIET DORP FREFERAED: J4a 144 1b.3000 S EOT
B LIMBRANE, INC. 1212044 L,211,294 144 0000 174 545 536
BELLE COSPORATHIN L1217 362 1,217,362 LEE00 2,020 AL
GO VAR D HOL D9NGES, THE G, Sk ] 64,560,010 o.ovan 4,777,440
BRIGHT KENDLE MES. By, INC 48H 00 LB 200 o.aang HUN, i
BLOCAMBERRY RESCATS CORFORATION 11,084 Fon 11,084, 700 45800 50,767,926
Eank al Commence 1.3%] 900 1,351, 500 I 7500 P55
E&NE OF THE PHIL 15LARDS 1216485 13314319 122 000 1435949, 7 Hr
A BROWH COMPANT, INC 141,133 112,132 05000 74,594
A Brivn Compang, Ine Series & Fral SRare 28,7 M 28,700 e 5000 &,760,550
A BROVWK COMPANY INC. STEIES B AREFEERED SHARES 41310 GaL,310 R RE U 30, B0 530
ARRCKH DOMPANY, INC. SERES CPRETEREE [+ SHARES 1495, 1451 145,130 102, 2004 195535 130
BASIC EMERGY CORPOAATION ES, 126 265 L8 126965 0. 150 LLITTYS
CHELSEA LOGETICS AND INFRA H DL DG 3,530, %0 EEEVE ] E.3100 4,375,260
CORCAETE AGGREGATES CORPORATION. [1ar] 100 54 %000 S.4R0
CHLATACOAPDRAT IS 14,560 14560

CEMTRAL AfUCARERA DE TARLAL, INC 1020 10,300 110 114,240
LHINA RANTING COFPORATION 104494, 7380 53.632,383 G137, 103 S35 £ D08 5T 347
CITYLARND DEV, CORP 10,558,405 E0,5510,405 e[ 774,355
CEBL AR, IR, 387,980 87,580 A8 2500 LIRS
CEBL AR NG CONYERTIBLE PSEF SHARE 1B 376 160,376 34.5000 6,23F 87
CROWM EOUITIES, INC. 1,071,000 L7100 LI ) 9476
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NAME OF 1850 ER L AT I
- . STIBCK ML MF VALLT TRANSFER OFFICE L] TOTAL M4y (F SHARESR MANBET FRICE MAERET VALLE

CEY CENTRO ESCOLAR UM VERSITY 407 &0 RER:1 56,235
CHP CEMEX HOLOINGS FHILIPPIRFS, B0 130, OO 1,505,000 1.7800 1184500
CK COMCEPCION INDUISTRIAL CO&R 14,700 14700 FERT ] 196 B35
clLi CEBL LAMDOMASTERS, (MG 5,954,213 5954, 213 TR 15.TTH fljd
Chihl LRAL LANDM ASTERS, (ML, SEMES A-1 PRIFERRED SHARES 131,380 131,380 10600 Doy 137,380,000
Tl CESL LAMDMARTERS, UG, SERIES &-2 PREFERRED SHAAECS 1Rk 184,705 100 (MM 184, 795,000
CHPF CEMTIRY FACIFC FOOD, INC 304350 3M.350 A1 9500 12,763 4K3
ChliG COMVENGE ICT SO UTIORS IRC. £, 500 Taad S 161000 114505 330
CosL CO¥L A50A FOLDINGS, INC EEINAGY 410,499 01540 LESE LT
Ly EOPEE CAPTTAL, NE £,813.100 5,413,100 T IEDD 15,654,478
(=6 CENTURY PROPERTIES GROLIP, INC, 114627 1140537 = F 1Y 4,202 D05
CPGPE CEWILRY PRDPERTIES GROUP, IMC SERIES B FREF SHARFS 2,704,670 2,794,E70 100 H0AH] B2 ZEI AT
CHEL CIMCORE RENEWABLE EMERSY COHPDIRATRSH 50000 A0, 000 12100 284380
CREIT Cluscara Erergy REMCorp. B4, 7R, 0900 64, TEDL OO 4.0530 187 579 HHF
CROWH CROIWN 8518 CHERMICALS Cskp 20,000 0,000 1.1 34,300
[ 1 CT5 Gloksl Equity Snoop, e L9500 13&R 000 D &S0 PaE?RED
CYBR CYHER BAY CORPORATICN 1,5, 500 1,005, 5H 03300 ILE15
el FOUELIDRAGDN CORPORATION 204,104 204, 100 182000 4 081820
(e DOHAPR REIT, IR 157,762,000 157, 7RZ000 L.oano 163 515 460
[HOFA DCURLEDRAGON PEXFETLAL FREFIREED LER QIO SHEH 47, 2000 259,024
ELMY DEL RBOMNTE PACIFIC LIAITED AR5 S0 g R Rl 1,910,510
TFNN OERSFIED FINL. NETWORE, ML, 410 m0 #18,500 IEO0 1,174 865
{1l CoCH I PO HOLEWNGS, 14T 553,700 553,79 10000 EES 064
oI DI CMIE HOUDEGS COAF. I08TE 550,633 1T RERGSS 10 53% 419, 286 1. B4y LT ESE 647 632
[KlH] A0 DOPPER SHVER MENES, IHE 45 ) 45, 00H) 2.cann 51,350
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I 1| STIBOK YA ME VALl TRANSFER OFFICE [881) TAITAL Py, 31 SIARES MARKE | FRITCE MAKKET VALLE
el DA HOLOIMGS, il L% LR b} 6, 1EE.403 R FL ] B, HO2 47
LAy Ch R WWEMCESLAD AND ASSOCIATES. tNC E55 £ 55,500 5. 5300 3,066,917
ik PHILAR HOILOIMGS CORFORATIN 26,500 1,500 2EE00 76 E1e
(e} 1 D& [ INDLSTRIES, ki 4, G268, W1 4,036, 5 0 .0 14533401
LM DRCOVERY WORLD COaP, 21000 27,0 11200 30,240
ERGLF ELGLE CEMIMNT CORPOAATION 31,0 31.784 17 M fap3zy
ECF EASYCALL COMNE PHILS,IMC “COMPFSDRN" FEO00 2500 2.2100 ELHB
ECWE EAST COMAT VILLCAK MINING CORPORATION 1LFrE oo 1L FFe o0 URUR [a 14 S50, 250
EER EEI CORPOSATICN 18 550 15 S5 36008 &7 0580
Lt EE Cosporation Saries A Prederred Shees 1,313, 760k 1,383,760 00 130063, 2400
EEIFG EER Corpuiration Series B Prefarresd Shafes 1595, B 1,908,820 2 4500 ELE R by
Li ¥ E-GAME VENTLURES INC 5,580,000 5,540,000 0.0094 L3076
Eia ENPCRT IND. BANE, 1K 00,000 10,000 L2600 1565, 000
ELl EMPRE EAST LAND HLDES | INC A ETR 0% 263X 5305 11,1300 33991049
(41]] PbPtRADOR I EE A 173, 100 18 G600 B, 749,077
FNES EMEX ENERGY CIEp 1L 538 10,534 BNk 507 580
ETOM TN PO, PHIL, (M T.996 7,096

ELHED EUO-MED LAR, FHEILE. INC. LK 95,000 RA200 B0 3ED
EVER EVER-GOTELLO RES. HLDGES, INC. 675000 AT 5 0 12550 1121235
Ew EAST WEST BANKING {0RF 2001717 1M T f.BL0 19,716,912
I BAR MIGEUEL FOOD AN SEVERALE INC FEF1I0 i [] L3 Fwm 15,672,552
FoG Figaro Calles Group, Iec. 10 52 O 18,651,000 [BEA0 16,500, 70
FoC FILINVEST DEYT. CORP, 332478 337,478 45900 1&42 44
FERRC FERRDROLE HOLDARGS, INC. REI N ) 131,000 5350 e LR LT
FEL FAR EASTERN LIMWVERSITY, [N 3,749 3,738 35.CO00 3,751,530
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MAME UF [S5UER LERCAT WYY
LR - STOHCE MAALE VALILT THAKEFEM (FFICE (L8] T AL Bk CHF AHARES MARKET PRIL MAKKET VALLE

FFI FALIPINCEF LN D, IR #, 100 R EE R #8054
FAREN HEST GEN COAPORATICN 4,153,886 4,193 BEE 10,1208 56 960 647
FLRE FILRVEST AEIT, CORF 78,120,156 TH 120,186 L9500 230,454,549
FIr F 1 PRINCE HLRGS OORP #0000 53,000 4.5[KH 10eainn
Fu FILIMNVEST LAMD N S12.000, 702 ¥1rowa oz 07300 2T TER QKD
FHETF FERST RAETRO PHIL. EDUITY EMCHS HGE .6 5500 105, B 56 BE0
Fist GLOSAL FERRCH REL HOLDINGS, NG 4,813,385 4,915,385 RETl o] 541,000
D ALLIAMCE SELECT FOOO4 IWTL, INC. 1060040 104, (W1 R EN &0, 2 B0
T FIRST PriL, OLDNGS AR A0 5T 54,0000 15,157 555
£ FOALIN PACIFIE, INE. 101 00 1080000 0.24a50 14 Rl
FLE FHULINTAS HOLDINGS, INC 2R D00 1344 603 0840 1502, 720
FI HLSYM CORS, A" 56,946 55,445 21000 118,537
GO GEOGRACE RES. PHILS, G 135,118 134,118 R L] 11575
GERI GLORAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. G77.70E 677, M1E 0LEA00 43178
GLO GLOBE TFLFCOR | 75,119 78,1208 21840000 154081736
GRAT G NETWDAE. INC I Fbh, 1000 356100 61140 11.A5E.E7L
GRAAP GRA HOLEMGS, IND. “PLA" 5000 5000 b FEa0 1,300
cla) OTESCD LAMD, INC “A" 1 Ba2 | N

GAIR GOTESED LAMD, ML "B £6591 RE.5%1

GREEN GREEMEREY HOK (99, INC, 4375930 4,395 510 e L 331,423
G5 CAMERR A SAN ML EL 1ML, T2 2260 75,0000 7,456,501
GTCAR GT CARITAL HOUDEES, TR 134,703 134,737 E58.0000 BE,EY5, 150
GTFPE GT CAFITAL HOLNGS, 1B, FREF B 21,3400 31,300 L] 20,55 00
HHAE ALLHOME CORPOEATION 13,933,040 13,513 a9 NS0 k51t 022
HLIsE BT HOLOINGS. (N 15 006, 100 1%, 006, 00 EXE 135,405,340



HAME G ISEUEHR LisCAT Y

CTRIME STOCE NaMF VALY TRAMSFER U FICE PLTH TOTAL MUk O GIARES
HTI Haus Talk, ipe 25450 115,000
Hun GULDEN Y HOLDINGS, INC 1004 1,004
i ILREMAT, I BB,000 38,000
Icr INTL COMTAINER TERML SERY AR I6E 479,063
10 TALFINAS DEVELORMENT CORP 333,045 1F3 M4
IF2 ITEGRATED bAC RO ELECTROMICS, IMC 1,200,700 L2002, P
INFRA FHILIPPINE INFRADEY HOUDMNGS INC. ARDE 489,500
Fald] RS RaE 447 A0 447 B30
PO IPEOPLE, BhC. 52 16T SE1ET
15 IS8 AIRD INFORBMATION & TECH, INC 2030 000 FOE0000
[0 FACKATONES, I 1000, oo 100 Dy
IFC JOALLIBEE FOODS CORP, A00534 A 534
IFCFE Jnlkitee Foods Dorpdarabion Series & Pref Shares 355,045 255,045
135 5 SURARATT HOLDHGS, INE 1091802 2,891,807
LEEPR THE EE FPERS HOLOBGS, ikl GETR 418 6,471,438
LEP KEPPEL PHIL PROE,, 1WT. 45T 45,76
KFH KEPFEL PHIL. HLOGS 4" 161 m1 161611
KPR KEFPEL PHIL HLDGS "B €350 66,350
KPP EEPWEALTH FIRGPERTY FHILS., 40 AL 5,0
LANT CHTT AND LAND DEVELIHERS, [N, TROD205 LEDG I
(1= LEPANTO CONS MHE. "4 J0,E5KE TS 20,500,575
[Tl LEPANTO Chis i, 1,833 803 EA33,003
EFT LISUFETY FLOUR MAES, IO, 1,501 1,500
(LS LRAG GO, B10,000 H10,000
LOOE LDOESTAR 1NV, HLDGES CORP. Ll ] 601, 00

== g
[EYE A
L7.5200
11,1900
0850

MARKET VALLE

530,750
2330, WHy
4054
184,097 408
1R A

1 Fa3 033
A A5
376,153
Aa714
Fak 30
1,100,000
20,854,606
250,964, TR
002817
128553514
1x2.135
AB60 150
1,250,034
5,300
1,774,359
1383515
142,638
16,560
153,500

F5 200
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AME OF [S50EHR LOCATIS

CLRHE STUCK NAME wALLT TRLARSFER CATICE Pl TOT AL MO OHF AHARES
LT FACFIC DRLIME SYSTERS 132,000 132,000
LFE LOPET HOLDMGS CORP, 4,330, 7 4,330,735
LRw LESUPE G BES. WORALD - WARRART 0,000 B.O00
L5 LORENED SHIPPIMG CORP 2300 I500
LTG LT GROURR, INC. FRa1a80 7551480
ErLY BARRILA MABIBE CORPORATION A" 130,634,046 PR RN I
AAAR MAGHILA bR PG CORPURATION "R" 71,305 771,349
i MACRGASIA CORPORATION 1,750.800 1,750,800
rAACAY BARCAY HOLDIMGS, INC. 550 £.500
MAH FAETRO ALLIASGCE HLDGS  POLITES "™ B 000 RE, SO0
WAHE PALTRO AL LLAMCE HILDGS . ELRJITIES "B° R EFS 138
BAAAL FBRCYENTURES HOLDIREGS, IKC 1,765,226 1,764, 126
MAHS MEKE GROUP, INC, 1,376,800 375,800
1] MANILE BULLETIN PLIELISHING COAP £2,048 BI. 098
MAac BAMELA BEROADZASTING COMPANY 100 1
MEBT METROPOLITAN BAMK TRUST CoL 1AE7 .21 1,567,3%]
AL MAARSTEEL CORE ., IMC A" 1,300 000 1,500,000
KACH MBRSTEEL COMS,, thNE, "R* B119 607 E 118507
WECHD Mediings Distribibors Inconporsied 12 567,000 13,567,000
MEG MEGAWOILD ODRPORATION 51.555,482 SLESS. an2
MER WANILA FLECTRIC CORMPANY V116 a1l
BAFC MAMNULIFE FINANCISEL CORPORATHIN 4] B0
RTFIR MWAKSTI FARANCE CORPORATION 180 1640
Tébls MULLERINEA GLOEAL HilnGS | meL 2,0 #2000
MG F8E TR GLOB&L HOH D PGS CORP 5253 6 F53

54400
1530
D.EB3M
0.680
0.0
LETQ
ouigng
& Al
12,

03100
10500
434000
1,700,000
E. 3300
LR

MARKE] VALUE

240,500
LL7R7 260
240
2.151
TO_Fa0 %40
F9], WY
2314
G524, 0500
T
T13E0
Ladd
L324,67F
360050
15434
B0
1430878172

2, B0 TR
107,343,738
1M 592 n0e

118
110,560
De151



AN LIF ISSUER ~a LW AT
CUBE o STOCK MAME VANLT TRAMSFER OFFICE [am 1] TOT AL %00, DT SHAKES MARKET Vall!

PdHL P ABLIHAY HOLDINGS CORF OO0 W1,000 o168k 14,4%H]
e AN LA BOCKEY CLUB, |NC. 000 44 000 Lama 55880
g BAERRY M AAT COMSLIMER CORE 11,551,500 11 551, 500 (L6000 £.055 144
MIONDE MIDNDE MISS A CORPORATION 214, E13,B{H LN PRTE B.A000 11,658,380
BARL BRI B LIED, INC L,7ES, 00 1,7E5,000 i 1,402,600
MREIT WREIT, inc 15,383,904 15,083,500 133400 205,221,226
TASG] PAETED RETAIL STORES GROUR, DL RREOO0 EFE000 1.2000 DL 00
AU FAAGRHAY INYL CORPONATION 53400 L3400 &, 3000 ZETEIG
AT FARMILE WATER COMPARYT, G A A0 GO LRE LY e PR e TLLTACHG
DL WALGAWIDE CONSTHLUCTICH OORP 3,067,800 3,067,200 14308 7.4%0,754
rirzn MEDAWIER CONST.LORF SERIES b6 FIEF, 244,700 249,700 ¥3.0000 13711500
MW P4 Mingawide Constraction Conp. Saies 4 Peef Shares 2047010 0T 530 57,95 M0 553 TEd
WIS FAEGAWIDE CONSTEUCTEIN SORF. SERIES & PEEF SHAREYS 253700 153,700 100.E330 15,572 960
HAS BN 13 1

WASE HASIPIT LLIMRER £OpAR AR I "B 50 S0

L] KIHAD RINERAL RESCLMACES INTLINC. 1,000 J18.000 0.3850 111430
L 1LAR RACREL A5 COSPORATIORN i THTH 1bY THTE 16S ER i T A% 706
i M CORPOAATION b 542 500 B3 500 0.5300 3,060,075
HHLCH MATL REINSARANCE CORP OF THE FHLS 5 1, Ton 5, 30w, 700 0 ES00 3,657 dary
HHGEM MEX TS EME S CORPORATION 15450 15 458 T 0000 108, L350
TGP CHEANAGIR [ | PHLIPFINES), iR, 074, 2 974,300 14.Coa0 13,854 704
ki CIWNCE CORPOHATICN 41,333 43,333 0, 1350 4,433
Ot CIRIENTAL PETROLELA B MINERSLS "4 323,01 WL FEERRTIN 1) GAKTa 1,651,000
alz S CRENTAL PETROLELAS & MiNERSLS '=2° 77052 BBS o 3 0TS LT AGE

GIRE CREMTAL PENINSIRLA RESOLAECES GRP. 34210 S e LB e 130ETH
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A LIF 1SS ER LW AT
THIBE STIHCK MAME VANILT TRANEFER OFFICE [am ] TOTAL %3, O SHAKES MAMKET FRICE MARKET VALUE

aw THE PHILKMILL CORP, T3 00 TR AR D oS TS 747
FAL BAL BDLOMGS, MO 14, 946 8,546 4.9510 187,923
P PHILIPPENE BLISINESS Aabi 182,811 182 511 97000 3,77 A7
FHC FHML. BANE OF COMMILUMICAT ONS Foa 1] 20 1558050 3116
PLOR FETACIM CORMHRATION EN L 1,645,729 243 £055.021
Pop PICO BESOUECES, IMC 453,420 453420 02050 02,851
PERT PETRDEMERGY AESDIURCES CORP, 40,060 01 0 14506 138 307
PGOLD PUREGTLD PRICE CLUR, Be, il 1 595 A00 HLEEDD 92088 290
PHA FREMELRL WORIDON ALLIANCE CORF 11,96 2000 11562000 Qa7 2081 350
THC FHILLOMEAT HDLD IMGS CORP 25,0300 35,000 14000 35,000
PHES PHILIPFINE EXTATES IR, 2EFAD 2, B7E,000 0.2550 TEETD
FHM FHINKIA CORPORATION 2174657 104857 19,0000 11319343
PHR PH RESQRETS GROUP HOLUDINGS, INC, TLE0E 10,818 006y 1, =) 53273.720
PILEA FHAKEYS PREZE ASIAVINTUREY, INC 02, G 107, 604 Fowmnn 217,774
PLLI% DIGIFL S IKTERACTIVE COAP 1163 500 L 2B, M) FT.3500 I2,1265%
BMIFC FANASOHRIC MEG. PHILIBPINES CORP. Q48,70 448,200 54300 IAM 136
Lt PREVIETOANN PROFERTY GACIIP, iNC. 2000 2,000 3700 Fr
PIE: PHILIPPSME M TEIMAL R 1116519 1L1FE5F 27,700 200, B53
AN PHIL, MATL. CONSTRLMTION CORF. 1102 7,100 & 2000 34,100
Phis PHOEMIK POTROLEU M PHILS., INC. 17.750 47,750 A 1T 157 455
PHYIE FHOEMIK PET. PRILS. - SUBSERES 36 16,5 1 16,510 F4.8500 418935
FRICH FoH-0-E-N-1 X PETROLELIRA PHELS I8 A35 455 A3, 455 irr.s000 TI 45, 345
Frg FRFCE COMPORATION Bad,Hm A23.700 11, BE H,757.118
PP PHILTOW N PROPERTIES, L. 1008 877 1LO0E 177
PHREN FREMIERE SLAND POWWFR EFIT CORPORSTION U e ] &1, 000 Fl 123,123 760



HAME CHISSUER

STOCK MAME

VAUELT

| BAREFER QisICE

CLHHE
FEFIR SETHOM SERIES ¥8 PREFEARED SHARES
Padan FETRUN CORPORATION SERES 44 PREFERRED SHARES
FAF&A FETROMN CORPORATMIN SFRIFS AR PREFERREN SHARES
PRF4L PETRON CORSRA TN SERIES 40 PREFERRER SHARES
FEHD PETROM CORPORATION SERIES A0 2REFERRE [ S4ANEE
FEFAE FETROM CORPORATION SERIES 40 PREFERRED SHARES
PRRM PRIME MEDEA HOLOINGS
PR PRMEY CORMOAAT N
PEd PHILIPPINE 50 eG s BANK
FiE TME PHIL STOCK EXCHAMNGE, IRC.
MC FHIL, TRAFST TR FARY
PTT FTAT COHP
P PHILEN MUNING CORE
PXP FEP FMERGY CORPORATION
REE RLEAL COMAME RCIAL BANKING TORR,
ELl ROKAS AND COMPANY, INE
R L Camrmmercial REIT, bnc.
REDIC REPCRAVER EMERGY DEVELCP MENT CORFORATION
HEG REPLIBLIC GLASS HLOHSS CORT:
RFLY HFM CORPORATION
RLEC BOBINE0ME LAND S0y
BT FHIL REALTY HLOGS CORP,
el FOCEVWELL L[ CORP
A, ROEAS WUOLDINGS, BC
HFL REYWOLES PHILS. CORP.

OO TOTAL M OF SHARES  MAHKET PRICE AMARKET VALUE
314,500 314,500 1,030 DY 334,027, To0
134,545 §8 3% 1,005 0000 20,639,725
211550 111550 L0000 113,781.000
534,315 538,315 1,083 0000 SH1867 545
L EER ai,920 1,050 (000 3013, BR[040
219850 210.E5D 1050 DO 430,842,500

313310 3,232,100 21300 6,805,503
&EI0 000 A, ER) 00 1.8100 B B0
A Fi 44 58, h0D 1,7E2 70
7970 7,980 1640000 1,508, 720
1A LETD 190000 1BE 530
17319 37,113 3300 12253
BEIZILI 0,645,113 2.7500 18551 583
1432534 14X 534 FERX] 4111,373
243,008 223,004 Faemon BAGE 28
aiwany a4, 004 LG 1.203 90F
Bl R TE.A69, 500 58500 447,045 347
BT L B} 164,05 1830 5.1000 215364, 10y
F 010 i [} 2 3500 LH ]
174395 274,795 38700 1448308
raiasng 1,518,504 13.3000 37491423
326,063 326,003 7. 8200 .13l
845,163 545,163 55108 1,427,195
T b6 240,050 145K 104 3835
4385 o
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%AME F B30 Eit LA T i
CCHOHE AWK % AME VALLT THANSFER OFFICE (L8 1]
RAH) REMEMSONGS RETAIL HL DGS,, iNC. AR, Ban 293,640
385 555 PHILIPPINES CORE. Ba6, 300 B96, 3K
sCC SEMIRARA WTBUNG AND BOWER CORP 2.HaT.B0 2u7 80
L= 7] 5K 1,174 EAT4
SECE SECURTY RAMNK COER 1.70%, 336 1.705,336
SEVY PHIL SEVE M CORPORATHIN FREL 2.0k
SA SYWIFT FOORS, NG 12,809,747 12,809,147
ShP SWIFT FDODS, NG, CONVERTIBLE FREF. 218 *ig
o SOLID GROUF, [N ITER 00 ¥7621 000
SGR SYHERE Y GREY DEVT. PHILS INC. &, Fd 400 5 334, 400
SHLFH MHELL FiLIPINAS CORPORATROR Al% oo 435, 000
FHAHG SHARG PROPERTIES, MC 373,472 373,472
5LF ALIN LIFE FINAMCIAL (RC. 1LE36 1636
5L STA. LUCRA LAND, B 5400 5000
5B B INVESTIAENTE £ P THS%T 7H.50
SAHC SAN MEEEL CORPORATION Tre 15 T 65
SHACTE ERAC LERIEY 2 PREF. SUBSERIES "3 £ 414140 434,730
1] AL SERIES I PREF. SURDSERIES "2 20, B0 a2, 504
ML SMYS SERIES 2 PREF. SLBSERILS *2-0° 3,519,350 3514350
EMICIE SMICSERIES d PALF, SUBSERIES "5-K" 2,048 544 1 BARE. 580
SRCIL ST SERIES 2 PREF, SUBSERIES "2-L7 1219040 10,218,040
SRACEN SMIC ZERIES 2 PREF. SLIBSERIES " - K" 2,740 B I3 B
kIO EMALC BETES & PHEF. SUBSERIES "2.0" SA54 30 S A5, 270
INFH 3 PRIMIE HOLDSRGS, INC 6351301 £351, 30
K0 SOCRESMIRCES INC. B A G, H

14. 9000

§7.0000
7 AB000
0.5
L.7amn
10000

05T
4,537 68
IOL133.220

4R 54 12
13,600
742,531

274

TA448 53
51,199,120
3,262 50H
12?1480
4953808
14 500
AL 208
B 505,300
16374

E 25325

4T L ETS

199,597,500

73,508 455

17297 302

TEEATR 421

164, 791,520
67T



=70+

BAME OF 135010 LERCAT i

STOCK NANE VAL THARSFE M (6 FICF [ | TAFTAR MOk OF SEARES
L ST OWER CORFPORA THIN 513,700 513,700
SP SEAFRONT MESOURCES LORP 14,08 A 522
SFNEL P NEW ERFRGY CORMEATION S0 000, GO0 2,836,000 53] 3,866,000,571
S5 51 GROARE, eC #5200 A 00
571 5T EDUCATION SYSTEMS HLDGE, M SRR 4 REA 0
1, ) STEMIEL MARUFATTLAL WG CORF, 144,50 144,500
&TH VISTARLALLE, INC. 1aE000 146,004
SUN SUNTRUST RECOET HOLDIMGS, INC. 1,697.550.795 1,697,550,795
ik RANITARY WARSS MFG. CORP =00 B0
T TEC MRETALS CORP, 113000 143,003
TEG TRANIPACIFI BROAEROND 11,796,000 11,785, 104
TLaLA, CRRTER MOLOINGS FH DORFORA TN 1552380 1,552,340
TCRIC CIETEK HLDGS PHL DORP. Subsarss 30 Pref Class B-2 OF5 700 525, M
TEmIE CIRTER HLDGS PHLDORP. Subsenes 20 Praf Clas #8-3 4,212000 4,212,000
TECH CIRTEK HOLOES PHILS. CO&P 5705 0% .30
TEL PLOT W 174,545 174,55
TEHI TOPERONTIER BNV, HLDGS , NE. 14,421 14,431
TLAES HARBOR STAR 54 880G SERVICES, 1M 10T AHH) 107,000
uEr LIMHD BANE OF TH [ PHILS. INC. agd 618 484,618
L UHIHL RESOURCES & HLOGS OO, INC 201000 0100
up UNWVEFSAL NGHTFEILD FROE 14 000 14E, 000
LA LHITED PARAGDN MG, Conp 5 58T 500 25 88T 200
LRSI WSO INTEENATIONAL DORP 10, M R0 G
URC LT EHAAL BOBIMA CORP. 1,365,266 1,385,266
W UNPAICE HOLDWRGS, TG 1, IR 000 1,008,000

MARKF T FRICE MARKET VALUE

90100
150y
LM
L1E0D
13400
15700
14700
ER L]

0, F0d
2.1350
srasag
45|

LEa

1, 2950000
611000
082N

20

noorE
LoD

4 ERE LT
I1E26
3.555,720,837
L5016
E-249 T
FI7,433
214,620
3,327,795.716

%4430
LSan1D
L154T1 &80
LEAL L e
184,173,200
f BT
116105 15
DH 5
6340
17446 2a8
45,445

T1kds
414,400
107,456,014
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|Ih:.—m I B R L LEBCATIO
CRE o ST MNaRIE VALILT THAMSEFR (FFICE [ E] FOTAL MLk O SATARES MARKET FRICE d PE.—. VALLE

W WANTAGE ECANTIES, PNC i, 250 0250 0PI 56,175
ViTa VITARICH COAPORATION 14,811,730 14,301, 700 0.5400 Anszne
Vil VIETA LAMD E LIFESCAPES, IR 3,552,000 1,5H4a,d0 1 4800 AN 100
WLLIA WISTA LAMD & LIFESCAPES, 180 SERIES 28 PELE BaLRES 2828 7H) 2, 8HE, 190 EOQ 00 51 856 580
YILE WIETA, LA & LIFESCAPES, INC SERIES 2B PRES SHASEY LIgsefD 1, 185670 103500 134781178
AT VICTOHRIAS MBLLIMG CO_, INC 120,204 LA 204 FR 0] 2E40 458
VEEIT VIstaREIT, ing 136423857 L35 433.857 1.0 I57 240,040
uNT VIVANT CORPORATRD N 11390a 11,530 12 030 214,438
WEB FHILWEE CONPOSATION LO5E 4050 105400 1. AH 1aTa el
WHI WISE HOLDNSS, N " 115249 118.34%
WIN WELLE B IMNDILUSTRIES, 1ML, A% 3,000 452,000 02118 59472
W LI WHCN DEFOT, INC. LA73,500 14T3,500 143000 1531050
K ERARPAS INC 1,277,504 a7, 500 I 232 5as
0w MEXGEN ENEAGY CORP STH ArE 00 28700 EEEY -y
IHI UL HMDMEE, INE. £330 000 230K 07 H} 16,560
TOTAL _ss1oom L8435, 2a6, 00 10451 BA0LA74 02,135,075 Aar 553 &4
SUMAMIARY -1

VAT 1 G51,008,111

WALILT ¥

WELILT 3

TRANEEER OFFICE 10.ERT, MRS 050

PLC AL 34047

GRARD TOTAL ME._ 35,075




CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION
(A WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF CHINA BANK €A PITAL CORPORATION)
SCHEDULE SHOWING FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INIMCATORS IN TWO COMPARATIVE
FERIODS UNDER REVISED SRC RULE 68

DECEMBER 31, 2024
_ Ratin Formula 224 2023
Amounts in P millons,
except for the ratios
Current ratio 158.37% | 38,985,
Current assets S P
Current habilinies 235 212
Azzet-to-equity ratio 209.36% 268.92%
Total assels . 344
Total equiry 221 128
Profitability ratios
Return on capital (2.30%) ° 240y
Net loss L}
Average share capilal® 213 If3
Return on equity {1.91%) {26.61%
Net loss - L
Avernge tolal equity® 175 [47
Return on asset (1.26%) {8.32%)
Net lass - @
Average total assers® 404 471

“Hvenage Ialance reproveans the sum of e balmres o respect e dyeount g begrianiivir and ol o ety dhaded b nan

The Company has no debt or bemrowings as of Decerber 11, 2024 and 2023, Accordingly, no solvency
ratko aid mieresi rate coverage ratio ane presented.



E Outloak

Your BIR AFS eSubmission upleads were received

From eafsitir.gov.ph <eafs@birgovph>

Date Thu 4/24/2025 4:55 PM

To  Mane Catherine T. Manarpiis <mctmanarpischinsbankph=
Cc  Mare Cathering T, Manarpiis <mctmanar piis@chinsbank.ph=

Hi CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION,

Valid files

= BEAF50003332790THTY122024.pdf
EAFS000333279TCRTY 122024-01 polf
s FAFSOOD033327TRTY 122024 pdf
EAFSDD0333279AF5TY122024 pdf

= EAFS000333279RPTTY 122024 pdf

L

invalid file

e Shone>

Transaction Code; AFS-0-2P2Z4ZVROMPIVVXYQPMQITZZ20QQYZTWRX
Submission Date/Time. Apr 24, 2025 04:55 PM
Company TIN: 000-333-279

Flease be reminded that vou accepted the terms and conditions for the use of this portal and
expressly agree, warrant and certify that:

= The submitted forms, documents and attachments are complete, truthful and carrect based on
the persanal knowledge and the same are from authentic records;

* The submission is without prejudice to the right of the BIR to require additional document, if
any. for completion and verification purposes;

« The hard copies of the decuments submitted through this facility shall be submitted when
required by the BIR in the event of audit/investigation and/or for any other legal purpose.

This 15 a system-generated e-mail. Please do not reply.
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPOMNSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of CHINA BANK SECURITIES CORPORATION (herein referred o as "the
Company™} I5 responsible for all infermation and representations contained in the Annual
Income Tax Return for the year ended December 31, 2024 Management s likewise responsiblo
for all information and representations contained in the financal statements accompanying the
Anrual income Tax Return covering the same reporting period, Furthermore, the Management is
responsible for all information and representations contained In all the other tax returns filed for
the reporting period including, but not imited to, the value-added tax and/or percentage tax
raturns, withholding taw reterns, documentary stamp tax returns, and any and all other tax
FEELfS,

In this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the
yvear ended December 31, 2024 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in
accordance with the books and records of the Company, complete and correct in all material
respects. Management fikewise affirms that:

a. the Annual Income Tax Return has been preparad in accordance with the provisions of the
MNational Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and ather
Izsuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of internal Bevenue;

b. any disparity of figures in the submitted reports ansing from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income
tax return pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling items and
maintained in the Company’s books and records in accordance with the requirements of
Revenue Regulations Mo, 82007 and other relevant issuances,

€. the Company has filed all applicable tax returns, reports and statements required 1o be
filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other
impositions shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the reporting periad,
except those contested in good faith,

RYAN N L. TAPIA
Chofrmah of the Boord

Date;

Signature: R sjﬁ% | :
MARISOL M, TE RO

President and CEQ

Drate:




SWOHRN DECLARATION

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
CITY OF MAKATI
METRO MANILA

[, MARISOL M. TEODQRO, Filipino, of legal ape, designated as President and CEC
of China Bank Sccurities Corporation, with business address at 28" Floor BIO Equitable
Fower, 8751 Pasco de Roxas, Brgy. Bel-Adr, Makat City do hereby certify the Tollowing:

s That in compliance with the requirements of Revenue Regulations Moo 02-2013,
submitied herewith 15 ome DVID-R comaining forty-cight scanned copies of BIR
Form 2307 covering the quarter ended 1273172024

# That the contents of DVD-R being submotied  herewsth  conforme 1o the
conditions’speci fication requirements sct by the Bureau of Intermal Revenue.

o That the soft copics of the BIR Form 2307 contained in the DVI-RE being submined
herewith are the completc and cxact copics of the onginal thereof,

| HEREBY DECLARE UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY 'TTIAT TIE
FOREGOING ATTESTATIONS ARE TRUE AND CORRECT.

MARISOL M. TEODORD

Presidear and CEOD
1 23-da6-958-000

Subscribed and swom to before me, in the CayMumcipahity of
. - this day of . 0 by Marisol M, Teodore, with
Unlfed Mol puas D CRN: 0003- 78T %41 me

I:h.'lﬂwu Llplli_ r'-- m‘_---
Page Mo. j: SALERFA. ANSAMA
Baak No. -’-. s rr-“::i'll-\-’hl:”:‘; :'.-fnka City -
Scrics of 7ol ' ._'1'%",_:"':'.: .:;::IH':"'L‘
':;u:r' b H.HEFFAIHI' HHHI_.]L_
e, :;-||-._ T .-.-_.- k]
I CErinds b | I'-
i bt

F ,-_.: 1 - I'_:.'# [
| _ﬁ:fig.r _ﬂﬁh

| I'I.sl_-- . lH_



Gl Outlook

esubmission Validation Report

From eSubimisson <esubmasanibin govphs
Date Tue 4/15/2025 3:46 Fhi
To CBEEC - TAX DEPARTMENT <chsectaxdept@chinabank.ph=

ACKMNOWLEDGEMENT RECEIPT MUMBER: 20250415-1306241
This is 1o confirm receipt of the filels) as stated below:
Total attachmwent/file(s) received : 1

Me. af valid file(s) o |
Ne. of imvalid file(s) 1a

We have validated your submission in compliance with existing BIR regulatians.
Find below the details of your submission:

Date of Submission; 0471002025 4:30:13 PM
Filemame{s]:
1. Attachment : Q003332 7900001220241 702 0AT
0003332730000 1220241 702.0AT - VALID
CONFIRMATION RECEIPT NUMBER - 2025-0000703276

VALIDATION REPORT:
1. Attachment : 00033327900001 220241702 .DAT

TIM of Withholding Agent TIN: 000333279-0000
Alphalist Form L1702
Taxable Month » 12/2024

LINE NUM  S3CHEDULE ERROR DESCRIPTION

QO0OG00300 Mo Errors Encountered

FLEASE BE INFORMED THAT THIS IS THE HNAL EMAIL ON THE VALIDATION PROCESS OF YOUR
SUBMISSION. HOWEVER, A VALIDATION OF THE TIN OF THE WITHHOLDING AGEMNT WILL STILL BE
UNDERTAKEN, ACCORDINGLY, PLEASE ENSLRE THAT THE TIM IS VALID FOR A SLACCESSEUL SUBMISSION
OF YOUR ALPHALIST {OR SLSP. AS THE CASE MAY BE).

Thank You.

This Is a system generated report, For inquiries, please email ws at contact_us@ bir.gov.ph
ar call ws at [2) B538-3200
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